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Letter to the Minister 
 
 
Hon. Dr Kim Hames MLA 
Minister for Training and Workforce Development 
13th Floor 
Dumas House 
2 Havelock Street 
West Perth WA 6005 
 

 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Section 54 of the Vocational Education Training Act 1996 and Section 61 
of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby submit for your information and presentation to Parliament, 
the Annual Report of West Coast Institute of Training for the year ended 31 December 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr Russel Perry AM   Michelle Hoad 

Governing Council Chair      Managing Director 
 
10 March 2014       10 March 2014 
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Section One: West Coast Institute of Training Overview 
 
Message from the Chair and Managing Director 
 

 
Constant change in 
the business, 
political and local 

environment 
requires West Coast 
Institute to 
continually adapt for 
our training to 
remain relevant to 
individuals and 
industry. 
 
The purpose of the 
Institute is to provide 
skills training to 

increase productivity and employability. As you read 
this annual report you will see testimonials from 
students which demonstrate just what a difference 
training can make to the lives of individuals.  
 
Throughout 2013 the Institute was home to over 
8,000 students across 27 study areas. Students 
chose traditional face-to-face activity at one of our 
four campuses throughout the northern suburbs; 
online participation from anywhere in the state; on 
the job training; or a flexible delivery which 
combined several methods.  
 
Assisting the State Government in developing a 
skilled workforce, the Institute conducted 66% of its 
training delivery in skill shortage areas and 
employment based training. In addition, 44% of 
courses were delivered at Certificate IV and above 
to provide high end skills acquisition and skills 
deepening to increase the productivity of 
individuals. 
 
The Institute has continued to engage existing 
workers in training, enabling them to obtain a formal 
qualification through the recognition of prior learning 
(RPL) and skills gap training. As a result, RPL 
delivery accounted for approximately 15.7% of the 
total profile training delivery. 
 
In May we celebrated the outstanding achievements 
of students and staff at the Institute’s annual 
Awards Evening. Chris Malone was named our 
2013 Apprentice Rising Star and later in the year 
was crowned the Apprentice of the Year by the 
Australian Culinary Federation. Our very deserving 
Trainer of the Year, Jacky Woods, went onto 
become a finalist for the same award at the WA 
State Training Awards held in September, while the 
Institute itself was a finalist in the International 
Training Provider of the Year. 
Perhaps one of the most anticipated events in 2013 
was the official acquisition of the McLarty Street 
site. The Institute has been delivering part of our 
nursing and health programs at the site for the past 
three years. The site was officially transferred to the 

Department of Training and Workforce 
Development in August and will now see the entire 
Academy of Health Sciences relocate to the 
campus to provide a range of nursing, allied health, 
fitness and wellness training.  
 
A feasibility study is underway to determine the 
viability of establishing a Community Health and 
Wellness Centre at the McLarty campus. It is 
envisioned that this would not only provide a live 
training environment for the Academy’s, nursing, 
allied health and fitness students, but it would also 
be of service to the surrounding residents.  
 
The Institute’s Academy of Hospitality and Culinary 
Arts (AHCA) hosted the inaugural WA launch of the 
SkillsOne National Skills Week in August. 
Collaborating with the other metropolitan State 
Training Providers (STPs) and Hospitality Group 
Training, students showcased their skills in front of 
the Minister and key members of industry that 
included employers, business associations, 
community groups and industry skills councils.  
 
Throughout the year the AHCA staff and students 
took out numerous awards including a gold medal 
at Thailand’s largest culinary competition, the 2013 
Pattaya City Culinary Cup. Lecturers David Smith, 
Jason Smith and graduate Patrick Carlin teamed 
with Chef Shane Keighley (a former graduate of the 
Academy) and Matt McBain to represent Australia 
against competitors from 12 other countries. 
 
Academy apprentices, Chris Malone and Phil 
Grace, teamed up to compete in the WA Nestle 
Golden Chef Hat competition. Going head-to-head 
over 4 hours against 6 other teams to deliver an 
entrée, main and dessert; Chris and Phil were 
awarded the gold medal for their superb effort. 
 
Adding to the vibrancy and diversity of the training 
environment the Institute embarked on the final 
stage of the journey to become an approved higher 
education provider. In December the Tertiary 
Education Quality and Standards Agency (TEQSA) 
approved the Institute as a higher education 
provider, enabling the Institute to commence 
delivery of our own Associate Degrees in Early 
Childhood Education and Security in semester 2, 
2014. 
 
A new Directorate of eBusiness was created in the 
Training and Business Services (TABS) division to 
enhance the Institute’s capability for training  
 
delivery and support in the emerging digital and 
online environments. 
 
We would like to thank all of our members on the 
Councils of Industry Partners (CoIPs) and the 



West Coast Institute | Annual Report 2013 
 
 

5 
 

Aboriginal Education Employment and Training 
Committee (AEETC) for giving up their time to 
share invaluable insight and knowledge. The 
continuous feedback provided by our CoIPs and 
AEETC ensures that our training remains relevant 
to address the skill needs of indiviuals and our 
surrounding community. 
 
We would like to thank all Governing Council 
members for their efforts throughout the year, in 
particular to our departing members Joan Varian, 
Kristy van der Walt and Lois Keay-Smith. Their 
input and advice has been greatly appreciated by 
fellow Governing Council members and Institute 
staff. 
 
In 2014 three new members will  join the Governing 
Council: Professor Arshad Omari, Deputy Vice  
 
 
Chancellor, Edith Cowan University; Professor Julie 
Quinlivan; and Mr Paul Darcy, Director of Clinical 

Services, Joondalup Health Campus; who will bring 
a new range of experience, expertise and 
enthuiasm to the Council. 
 
While 2013 was a year full of success, the road 
ahead is perhaps the most exciting. It is with great 
confidence that we look forward to West Coast 
Institute continuing to provide an environment that 
fosters innovation, encourages collaboration and 
delivers high quality skills training to individuals, 
enterprise and industry throughout Western 
Australia. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr Russel Perry AM                         Michelle Hoad 
Chair, Governing Council          Managing Director 

Above: (left) Dr Russel Perry AM and Michelle Hoad (far right) with 2014 
Awards Evening Winners, Aliesje Kolovis (Student), Chris Stevens (Employee) 
and Jackie Woods (Trainer). 

Right: 2013 Australian Culinary Federation 
Apprentice of the Year, Chris Malone, speaking at 

the National Skills Week launch 
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Executive Summary 
 

West Coast Institute’s vision is ‘To be the first choice of students and industry’. Guided by this statement, the 
Institute seeks to ensure that enterprise and industry have access to job ready graduates and importantly our 
students obtain relevant skills to assist them enter and prosper within the labour market. 

2013 highlights in regards to the Institute’s focus on addressing strategic issues were: 
 

 66.1%% of its profile training in skill shortage areas and employment based training.   
 Continued focus on the Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) delivery with RPL representing 

approximately 15.7% of profile delivery. 
 Consistent with State and Commonwealth Government agenda, a significant proportion of the Institute’s 

profile delivery (84.3%) is at Certificate III or higher.   
 Delivery at Certificate IV and above represents 44% of total profile delivery.  This focus on the provision 

of high end skills serves to increase the productivity of the State and Region’s labour force.  
 
Maintaining sound financial controls and reflecting the Institute’s drive for efficiencies, the cost per SCH for 
aggregate training delivery for 2013 was $14.18. 
   
Achievements against Training WA; Planning for the future 2009-2018 include: 
 
 
1. Developing a skilled 

workforce 

 
 The Institute experienced a 24% increase in apprenticeship and 

traineeship delivery (2013:2012) 
 

 The Institute continued to focus on being resourceful, agile and partnered 
when conducting activities with stakeholders, community groups and 
industry to develop training solutions that addressed workforce 
development needs for individuals and enterprise. 

 
 34.89% of training is delivered in a non-traditional classroom based 

environment which encompasses: workplace training, online, offsite and 
flexible (combination of methods) training programs. 

 
 RPL delivery represents some 15.7% of training delivery. 

 
 Over 84% of profile activity has been at the Certificate III and higher level. 

The Institute has focussed on ensuring that its students and 
industry/enterprise will benefit from this focus upon skills development and 
skills deepening 

 
 Attained 104.4% enrolments targets in Diploma and Advanced Diploma 

qualifications.  
 

 The Institute engaged with industry via our Governing Council, two 
Council of Industry Partners and relationships with Industry Training 
Councils to ensure that training delivery remains relevant to industry 
requirements. 

 
 
2. Developing a 

contemporary 
apprenticeship and 
traineeship system. 

 

 
 Introduction of the ‘ApprentiSwap’ program that enabled an employer to 

release their apprentice for institutional training while taking a pre-apprentice 
on board for work experience. To date, the program has received positive 
feedback from employers. 
 

 Once again the Academy of Hospitality and Culinary arts students and staff 
took out numerous local, national and international awards – demonstrating 
the quality of the training provided at the Joondalup campus. Of special note 
was the Academy’s 2013 Apprentice Rising Star, Chris Malone, taking out the 
Australian Culinary Federation’s prestigious Apprentice Chef of the Year award 
in Canberra. 

 
 

 
3. Increasing individual 

 
 The Institute’s ‘Put me in the picture’ recruitment campaigns targeted school 

leavers, return to work individuals, disengaged youths, employers and access 
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participation in 
training. 

 

and equity groups to inform them about the training and workforce 
development opportunities at the Institute. The Semester 1 campaign resulted 
in the highest number of applications received by the Institute since 2008. 

 
 68 Aboriginal students studied at Certificate III and higher in 2013. 

 
 

 
4. Supporting regional 

communities. 
 

 
 The Institute worked with the Mental Health Commission to provide 

scholarships to nurses in regional areas to undertake specific mental health 
training. 

 
 
5. Creating a vibrant 

and diverse training 
market. 

 
 The Institute continued to engage with the local business community to identify 

the needs of small and medium enterprises (SMEs) in the Joondalup and 
Wanneroo area. The result was the launch of the Skill Acquisition Workshops, 
a range of specific half day and full day workshops that focussed on the key 
skills training required by SMEs. 
 

 The Institute initiated a ‘Product Review’ to ensure that the current course 
offerings and delivery methods meet the needs of individuals and enterprise 

 
. 

 
6. Expanding training 

system capability 
and capacity. 
 

 

 
 The Institute received approval from the Tertiary Education Quality and 

Standards Agency (TEQSA) as a higher education provider. As a higher 
education institution West Coast will expand its course offerings to include two 
new Associate Degrees, Early Childhood Education and Security, in 2014. 

 
 

 

 

“My training at West Coast Institute has 
offered me so many opportunities, and has 
expanded my skills. The lecturers have always 
gone the extra mile to help and support me.”  
 
Chris Malone, 
2013 Australian Culinary Federation 
Apprentice of the Year 
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Corporate Governance 
 
Governing Council Members 2013 
 
 

Dr Russel PERRY Chairperson 

Mr Graham DROPPERT Deputy Chairperson 

Mr Kim ALLEN Member 

Ms Catherine BRODIE Member 

Ms Zoe CLUNE Member 

Mr Gary  ELLIS Member 

Ms Louis KEAY-SMITH Member 

Mr Laurie KRUIZE Member 

Ms Kristy VAN DER WALT Member 

Ms Joan VARIAN Member 

Ms  Michelle HOAD Managing Director 
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Functions 
 
The functions of the Institute Governing Council are specified under Section 42 of the Vocational Education and 
Training Act 1996. The Governing Council is the governing body of the Institute, with authority in the name of the 
Institute to perform the functions of the Institute and govern its operations and affairs.  
 
In performing its functions the Governing Council is to: 
 
 Prepare the Institute training profile for the approval of the Minister as and when required. 
 
 Develop and implement strategic and management plans for the Institute. 
 
 Ensure the Institute courses, programs and services are responsive to, and meet the needs of, students, 

industry and the community. 
 
 Ensure that the Institute’s commitments, under its Resource Agreement and any other contractual 

agreements, are met. 
 

Accountability and Transparency 
 
The Accountable Authority for West Coast Institute of Training is the Governing Council. Members are expected 
to act honestly and to exercise due diligence in managing the business of the Institute. The Council has 
independence to determine policies and activities to the provisions made in the Vocational Education and 
Training Act 1996 and other Statute Law. The Council conducted six meetings during the calendar year. All 
documentation produced by the Council is transparent and forms part of public record in compliance with 
provisions of the General Retention and Disposal Schedules, established by the Records Office of the State 
Archives Western Australia. 
 

Behaviour and Ethics 
 
The Governing Council places the highest value on ethical behaviour. It is guided by the Codes of Conduct and 
Ethics (3.5) outlined in the ‘Guide for TAFE College Governing Councils’ and ‘West Coast Institute of Training 
Code of Conduct’. The adoption and application of the Governing Council codes and ethics reflects the Institute’s 
commitment to honesty and integrity in all of its dealings. 
 

Risk Management  
 
The Governing Council meets legislative and business requirements by progressively developing and reviewing 
risk management policies in accordance with Treasury Instruction 825. 
 
Risk Management and Business Continuity Plans have been integrated into the ongoing business planning 
process with sections reviewing plans each year in consultation with the Institute’s Risk Assessments 
Coordinator. 
 

Conflict of Interest and Pecuniary Interest 
 
The Council operates in accordance with the protocol for conflict of interest outlined in the ‘Guide for TAFE 
College Governing Councils’. While acting in the capacity of Council member, Council members place public 
interest above personal interest. If a matter being considered is identified as a potential conflict of interest, the 
member may not be present at the discussion of the matter and does not vote on the matter. This includes any 
case where a member or associated entity may benefit from the Council’s decision. No conflict of interest was 
reported during 2013. 
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Organisational Structure 
 
 

 

Minister  
Training and Workforce Development 

West Coast Institute 
Governing Council 

West Coast Institute 
Managing Director 

General Manager 
Training & Workforce 

Development 

Executive Director 
Hospitality, Commerce, 
Technology & Trades 

Executive Director 
Health, Education and Social 

Sciences 

Executive Director 
Strategic & Business 

Development 

General Manager 
Training & Business Services 

Executive Director 
eBusiness 

Manager  
Finance 

Manager 
Workforce Services 

Manager 
Student Services 

Manager  
Facilities & Sustainability 
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Senior Leadership 
 

 

 
Michelle Hoad, Managing Director 

Michelle was appointed Managing Director in January 2013 and comes to West 
Coast Institute from the position of General Manager, Education and Training, at 
Polytechnic West. 

With over 20 years experience in the education and training sector in Western 
Australia, Michelle is passionate about the role of education and training in 
supporting individuals to achieve their potential and in supporting enterprises to 
build their capacity and productivity. 

  
Brett Dorney, A/General Manager – Training & Workforce Development 
 
Brett has been the acting General Manager of Training & Workforce Development 
since May 2013. He is responsible for three directorates; the academic 
directorates of Hospitality, Commerce, Technology & Trades and Health, 
Education and Social Sciences; and the directorate of Strategic & Business 
Development.  
 
Having spent 15 years in the VET sector and 19 years of Commonwealth 
Government service he brings a wealth of experience and knowledge in the areas 
of leadership and management to the Institute’s corporate executive. 
 
 

 

 
Russell Coad, General Manager – Training & Business Services  
 
Russell is the Institute’s General Manager of Training & Business Services. He 
has held this position for the past 9 years and has had a distinguished career in 
secondary education and was a Principal of an Independent School prior to 
moving to the VET Sector.  
 
Russell’s qualifications include Bachelor of Science (Double Maths Major); 
Diploma of Education; Graduate Diploma Science Education; Teacher’s Higher 
Certificate, Diploma Front Line Management and Train the Trainer. 
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Overview 
 
The Institute provides vocational training and higher education locally, nationally and internationally to meet the 
demands of industry, enterprise, schools, individuals and the community. 
 
The Institute has six Academies of Excellence that are at the forefront of industry led training: 
 

• Aboriginal Academy of Sport, Health and Education 
• Academy of Digital Technologies 
• Academy of Health Sciences 
• Academy of Hospitality and Culinary Arts 
• Trades North 
• International Academy of Law Enforcement and Security 

 
West Coast delivers over 150 qualifications from Certificate I to Associate Degrees via on-campus, online or on 
the job training in the study areas below. 
 
Hospitality, Commerce, Trades and Technology  
(HCTT)  

Health, Education and Social Sciences  
(HESS) 

Commerce Hospitality & 
Technology 

Trades Health Education & 
Social Sciences 

Security, Risk 
Management & 
Investigations 

Information & 
Communication 
Technology 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Allied Health Entertainment 

Retail Events Construction 
Trades 

Fitness Access to 
Education 

Human Resources Hospitality  Nursing Education 

Accounting & 
Finance 

  Health Services Training & 
Assessment 

Marketing   Mental Health Youth Work 

Work Health & 
Safety 

  Beauty Children’s Services 

Project 
Management 

   Community 
Services 

Spoken & Written 
English 

    

Police Preparation     

Business & 
Management 

    

 
In 2013 West Coast Institute: 
 

 Delivered 2.34 million state funded student curriculum hours (SCH) and 2.9 million SCH in total 
 

 Had approximately 286 full-time equivalent academic and support staff to help its students and clients 
meet their professional and personal goals 

 
 Had an operating budget of $40.9 million 

 
 Earned a commercial revenue of $5.1 million 
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Section Two: Strategic Plan 2013 - 2015 
 
Our Vision: 
 
To be the first choice of students and industry. 

 
 
Our Role:   
 
Through industry and community partnerships, West Coast Institute will provide world-class training for:  

 Sustainable employment.  
 Workforce development.  
 Achieving personal aspirations.  

 
 
Our Goals 
 
West Coast Institute’s major goals are to;  

 Address the skills requirements of individuals and industry. 
 Enhance our customers’ experience. 
 Ensure our operations are sustainable.  

 
 

Our Values 
 
Ethics - We will behave in a manner that demonstrates respect for one another and display honesty, fairness 
and integrity in all that we do.  
 
Accountability - We are responsible for our own actions. We will demonstrate social, financial and 
environmental responsibility to stakeholders. 
 
Continuous Improvement - We believe in investment in technology, resources and people and do this 
in order for the Institute to evolve. 
 
Customer Satisfaction - We believe in building and nurturing relationships that meet the needs and 
expectations of our internal and external customers. 
 
 
The West Coast WAY 
 
To achieve success, the Institute must continue to develop training that is characterised by being: 
 
Resourceful - particularly in maximising the use of existing resources, such as existing industry equipment and 
facilities for the delivery of training products and services. 
 
Agile - particularly, in finding ways of delivery of training products and services in a mode, manner and time to suit 
student and customer needs. 
 
Partnered - delivery in partnership to improve the bottom line of all clients whether in industry, enterprise, the 
community or as an individual, frequently enhanced by other partnerships with other Institute Divisions, State Training 
Providers, higher education institutions and private providers. 
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Section Three: Report on 2013 Business Plan 
Changes to the VET Act in 2009 resulted in a requirement for an annual Business Plan and a three year Strategic 
Plan to be presented to the Minister for consideration and approval. The following provides an outline of activities 
undertaken against the approved 2013 Business Plan. 

Positioning and Priorities  
In considering its positioning and priorities for 2013-2015, the Institute has ensured that the six major strategies 
contained in Training WA 2009 – 2018 (as outlined below) have been considered. These are: 
 

 A skilled workforce. 
 
 A contemporary apprenticeship and traineeship system. 
 
 Individual participation in training. 
 
 Support for regional communities. 
 
 A vibrant and diverse training market. 
 
 Training System capability and capacity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

“I absolutely loved my time a West Coast. 
The training and overwhelming support I 
received throughout my course has given 
me the drive and passion to make a 
difference in people’s lives.” 
 
Aliesie Kolovis 
2013 Student of the Year 
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Positioning  
 
In considering its positioning for 2013 - 2015, the Institute ensured that the six major strategies contained in 
Training WA have been considered and integrated into the following three strategic objectives listed below.  

1. Address the skills requirements of individuals and industry 
The Institute continues to be an active member in business and civic communities in the surrounding 
municipalities of Joondalup and Wanneroo. To assist in developing a skilled workforce the Institute engages 
with enterprises, industry associations, stakeholders and industry training councils; in order to receive 
continuous feedback on the changing skills requirements in the workplace. Industry’s advice and direction is 
integral to the Institute’s continuous improvement activities, curriculum development and refinement of 
delivery methodology to ensure that students obtain the skills required in the workplace. 
 
With an active Council of Industry Partners the Institute continues to refine its apprenticeship and traineeship 
process to accommodate the changing demands of employers. In the trades area the Institute has 
developed an innovative ‘ApprentiSwap’ initiative that enables employers to host a pre-apprentice when they 
release their apprentice for the required institutional training. Feedback from participating is positive, as 
hosting of the pre-apprentices reduces workplace disruption when their apprentices go to “TAFE” and 
provides invaluable work experience to the pre-apprentice. 
 

2. Enhance our Customers’ experience 
The Institute invested in a variety of physical and electronic infrastructure throughout the year to enhance the 
students on campus and online learning experience. With the acquisition of the McLarty Street campus, the 
Institute began planning a refurbishment program that saw a phased approached to building and 
infrastructure improvements at the site. The works will be ongoing throughout 2014 with majority of the site 
being utilised by students participating in the Academy of Health Sciences programs. 
 
Ensuring course information is accessible to all; the Institute website underwent an accessibility review in 
accordance with the Commissioners Circular 2011-03. Remedial action was taken and completed prior to the 
stipulated deadline, ensuring that the Institute’s website and its information is accessible to all individuals. 
 
To provide students with an appropriate online environment to undertake their training journey, the online 
learning software BlackBoard was rolled out throughout the Institute in addition to the student’s email 
environment being upgraded to Office365. This new environment provides student with an online suite of 
Microsoft Office, instant messaging service and online file storage whilst completing their training at West 
Coast. 

3. Ensure all operations are sustainable 

With the dynamic nature of industry and the fluctuating demand of specialist skills requirements, the Institute 
has taken a proactive approach to make sure that its course offerings remain relevant to both individuals and 
enterprise. 

Acknowledging that constraints of time and money enterprises face when it comes to workforce 
development, the Institute refocussed its business development activities to focus on short skill set 
acquisition programs to address the current needs of the local business community. 

 
To reduce the dependence on State Government funding for operational activities, the business 
development section was tasked with identifying alternative commercial opportunities to derive revenue from 
complimentary non-training products/services. Discussions were held throughout the year with key 
stakeholders resulting in the identification of new opportunities to be further explored in 2014.  
 
The Institute commenced a ‘Product Review’ to ensure that the current course offerings and delivery 
methods meet the needs of individuals and enterprise. This ongoing review will ensure the ongoing delivery 
of course will be sustainable in an ever-increasing competitive environment. 
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Priorities 
 
Focussing on the following high-level strategic actions throughout 2013 the Institute has been able to meet its 
strategic and operational objectives. 

1. Address the skills requirements of individuals and industry 
 
 Increase the number of marginalised students undertaking training 
 Increase the number of students undertaking training in skill shortage areas 
 Learning reflects industry standards 

 
 

 The Aboriginal Academy of Sport, Health and Education continued to partner with local outreach 
schools/centres to connect with at risk Aboriginal students, providing them with an opportunity to gain 
qualifications in the Community Services and Trades areas in addition to taking part in Gaining Access to 
Training & Employment program. 

 
 The Institute experienced a 24% increase in Employment Based Training  SCH delivery (2013:2012) 
 
 The Institute continued to engage with its Council of Industry Partners (CoIP), seeking feedback and 

validation on its training curriculum and practices. The feedback obtained through the CoIPs assist 
lecturers in making ongoing refinements to teaching methodologies and practices to ensure that students 
obtain the skills that are required by industry. 

 

 

2. Enhance our Customers’ experience 
 

 Engage with our customers via the chosen medium 
 Provide accurate and timely customer training/career advice 
 Develop and deliver eLearning opportunities 

 
 
 The Institute refined its marketing strategy to utilise a variety of platforms that reflects the preferences of 

the different student cohorts. This has resulted in an increase in two-way communication between the 
Institute and student on a variety of social media platforms. 
 

 To provide high school VET Coordinators and Career Counsellors with increased access to relevant 
information a specific resource page was created on the Institute’s website - with a variety of online videos 
containing information about the courses on offer, explaining the different study options and how to apply 
for prospective students. 

 
 New ‘how to’ videos were produced as a taster for prospective students. These videos showcase students 

applying their trade in a 90 second time frame that encourages the viewer to learn more by contacting the 
Institute. The videos have been included on the Institute’s YouTube channel and promoted across its other 
social media platforms. 

   
 The continued deployment of the online learning platform BlackBoard has seen the Institute increase the 

number of courses that are available to study via online or flexible delivery.  
 

 All students in 2013 had their email environment upgraded to Microsoft Office 365, providing them with 
online Microsoft Office applications, Instant Messaging and Collaborative worksites in addition to email and 
file storage.  
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3. Ensure our operations are sustainable 
 

 
 Operate within an overarching governance framework 
 Manage the triple bottom line 
 Conduct daily operations more efficiently 

 
 
 A Governance Committee was established to oversee the Institute’s governance framework. The 

committee contains two members from the Governing Council and a member from the Public Sector 
Commission in addition to members of the Institute’s Corporate Executive.  

 
 The Office of the Auditor General acknowledged the Institute as a better practice agency in 2013. 
 

 Quarterly progress meetings are held by the Managing Director with each section to review and monitor 
financial, human resource and current/planned activity against the sectional business plan. The result of 
this activity has seen the Institute meet budget in 2013.  

 
 The final stages of the Institute’s Electronic Document Management System (EDMS) were implemented 

throughout the year, with subsequent training provided to staff across all areas of the Institute. 
 

 
 
 
  

“I would recommend the Nursing course at West Coast 
to anyone who has a passion for helping people as 
Nursing really is a rewarding career”   
 
Lauren Gil 
Graduate Enrolled Nurse 
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Compliance Reporting 

Staff Development 
Professional and staff development needs are aligned with Institute and Directorate business plans.  Staff relate 
their developmental need to the Institute’s Strategic Plan and the Business Plan and give effect to these needs 
through the performance development and public sector compliance processes. This allows commitment to staff 
training to be strategic and relevant, and ensures that training resource expenditure is monitored. 
 
To enable the Institute to meet its public sector obligations a number of professional development and 
compliance programs were conducted for staff in 2013, these include: 
 

 Staff selection skills for panel members. 
 Senior first aid. 
 Injury Management 
 Fire warden and extinguisher training. 
 EEO and bullying training. 
 OSH Awareness through Worksafe Week activities. 
 Accountable & Ethical Decision Making. 
 Copyright training. 

 
A new Teaching and Learning Consultant position was created to provide targeted and flexible training to 
lecturing staff. In addition, two PD conferences were held on eLearning and Transfer of Learning. 

Legislative Environment 
West Cost Institute complies with the following relevant legislation: 

 Archive Act 1983, Commonwealth. 
 Classification Enforcement Act 1996. 
 Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops) Agreements Act 1985. 
 Copyright Act 1968, Commonwealth. 
 Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003. 
 Disability Services Act 1993. 
 Education Service Providers (Full Fee Overseas Students) Registration Act 1991. 
 Education Services for Overseas Students Act 2000, Commonwealth. 
 Electoral Act 1907. 
 Equal Opportunity Act 1984. 
 Financial Management Act 2006. 
 Freedom of Information Act 1992. 
 Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987. 
 Higher Education Support Act 2003, Commonwealth. 
 Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 
 Industrial Relations Act 1979. 
 Industrial Training Act 1975. 
 Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951. 
 Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993. 
 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984. 
 Privacy Act 1988, Commonwealth. 
 Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003. 
 Public Sector Management Act 1994. 
 Spam Act 2003, Commonwealth. 
 State Records Act 2000. 
 State Supply Commission Act 1991. 
 Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996. 
 Vocational Education and Training Act 1996. 
 Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. 
 Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004. 
 Workplace Relations Act 1996, Commonwealth. 

Industrial relations 
The Institute through its Joint Staff Consultative Committee, in accordance with the WA TAFE Lecturers’ Certified 
Agreement 2011 and the Public Service and Government Officers General Agreement 2011, has provided 
opportunity for the discussion and resolution of matters that impact on workplace issues. A number of matters 
have been resolved through consultation and negotiation.  
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Structural realignment, amendments to various policies, targeted training activities, development of tools for 
lecturers and changes to the FHA arrangements have been made. 

Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes 
The Institute is committed to ensuring compliance and ‘best practice’ requirements of the Public Sector Standard 
in Human Resource Management, the Public Sector Code of Ethics and the Institute’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Human Resources (HR) policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure compliance with 
Public Sector Standards.  
 
All staff have access to HR policies and procedures – including policies that relate to recruitment, selection and 
appointment, transfer, secondment, temporary deployment and grievance resolution – through the Institute 
Intranet and via email communication from the Workforce Services Branch. 
 
Maintaining awareness of the Public Sector Standards and Code of Conduct is achieved through staff training, 
newsletters, staff meetings, email communication and the Institute intranet.  The Institute Code of Conduct was 
reviewed in 2013. All new staff complete an on-line induction program, including information concerning the Code 
of Conduct and Ethics through the Accountable and Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) awareness modules. 
Further, an Induction Workshop provided additional supporting information about the importance of compliance 
related issues. 
 
As required under Section 31 of the Public Sector Management Act 1994, the Institute has complied with its 
reporting requirements to the Office of Public Sector Standards in relation to Public Sector Standards, Codes of 
Ethics and its Code of Conduct. 
 
One breach claim was lodged (Employment standard) under Public Sector Human Resource standards but was 
not upheld.  There were no applications made for breach of Public Sector Code of Ethics or Grievance during the 
reporting period. There were no allegations made by staff under the Institute’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Actions taken to monitor, improve and ensure compliance included: 
 

 Information about Standards and Codes are included on agency intranet and in induction materials. 
 A continued cultural transformation process has been implemented to engage staff in working with 

shared values in an organisation that is Values Driven. 
 The Institute participated in the Public Sector Commission agency survey in July 2013. 
 Continued implementation of Accountable and Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) on-line awareness 

modules. 

Public Disclosures 
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 came into effect on 1 July 2003, requiring the Institute to: 
 

 Facilitate the disclosure of public interest information. 
 Provide protection for those making disclosures. 
 Provide protection for those who are the subject of a disclosure. 
 

In accordance with the Act, the Institute appointed a Public Interest Disclosure (PID) Officer and has published 
internal policies and procedures related to its obligations. There were no PID applications received for the 
reporting period.  

Corruption Prevention 
New staff participated in the Accountable and Ethical Decision Making training program as part of the Institute’s 
induction process. 
 
There was one reported incident and investigation of alleged misconduct during the reporting period. This 
allegation was reported to the Crime and Corruption Commission and the matter was resolved. 

Risk Management  
The Institute undertook a thorough review of Risks with the Corporate Executive and line Managers in 2013 to 
ensure adherence to legislative and business requirements. The Risk Management Framework, Policy and 
Procedure were reviewed and updated. 

Risk Management Plan reviews are integrated into the annual Business Planning Process.  Sections will review 
plans annually with assistance available from the Institutes Risk Management Coordinator as required. 
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Staff Profile  
Table:  Staffing numbers comparison from 2009 to 2013. 

 2009 
% 

Total 
FTE 

 
2010 

% 
Total 
FTE 

2011 
% 
Total 
FTE 

 
2012 

% 
Total 
FTE 

 
2013 

% 
Total FTE 

FTE for year 250.15  271.93  309.11  299.14  286.15  

Academic Delivery 139.21 55.65 145.76 53.60 166.53 53.87 167.67 56.05 165.31 57.77 

Academic 
Support Services 49.8** 19.91 

 
48.9 

 
17.98 52.7 17.05 

 
55.63 18.60 

 
51 17.82 

Corporate Services 55.14 22.04 69.27 25.47 81.78 26.46 72.84 24.35 67.84 23.71 

Unattached/Redeployees  2.00 0.79 2.00 0.74 0.5 0.16 3.0 1.00 2 0.06 

Host Funded Positions 
Small Business 4.00*** 1.58 

 

6.00*** 
 

2.21 7.6*** 2.46 0 0 0 0 

Workforce Data taken from West Coast Institute Electronic Information Management System and Empower 
HRMIS 
 
NB: Information provided as at December 2013.  FTE figures can vary across the year by +/- 10% due to training 
demand fluctuations 
 
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) and Injury Management 
 
Statement of commitment to occupational safety and health and injury management. 

The Institute’s Corporate Executive continues to commit to occupational safety and health and injury 
management through endorsement of a yearly OSH Business Plan. 

The Executive treat OSH as a priority, having an Executive Director as a member of the OSH Committee and 
ensuring staff understand their responsibilities and are trained appropriately.  Support is given for the Safe Work 
Week training activities and the Wellness Program which gained momentum in 2013. 

A staff member has been allocated with responsibility for the management of Workers Compensation and injury 
management within the Institute. 

Formal mechanism for consultation with employees on occupational safety and health matters.  

The Institute has an OSH Committee, which is the peak consultative forum for OSH in the Institute, which 
consists of all OSH representatives, a corporate executive member and management and met eight times in 
2013. 

Incident trends are captured and reported to the OSH Committee where appropriate actions are considered and 
remedial action recommended.  The committee also reviews budget and OSH Plan progress at each meeting. 

OSH representatives consult with management in the investigation of incident reports and the recommendations 
for improvement of safety systems within their own areas of responsibility and the Institute in general. 

The Institute currently has twenty trained OSH reps with refresher training available in 2014 for reps that have not 
had training in the last two years. 

Statement of compliance with injury management requirements of the Workers’ Compensation and Injury 
Management Act 1981 including the development of return to work plans.  

The Institute complies with injury management requirements and coordinates Return to Work programs. 

Workers Compensation and Injury Management information is provided during Institute Induction Sessions with 
more comprehensive information, including policies and procedures, available on the Intranet. 

An injury management workshop was conducted by a WorkCover representative in 2013, which was attended by 
most managers and supervisors. 

Occupational safety and health management system  

The Institute has a documented safety and health management system that is communicated to staff through 
inductions, information sessions and display on our Intranet for all staff members to view. 

It documents responsibilities of management and staff and includes responsibilities of OSH Reps and Floor 
Wardens. 
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A full WorkSafe Plan Audit was conducted in June 2012 by Switched onto Safety, which resulted in a very 
positive report.  Management Commitment, Planning, and Training and Supervision rated very highly. 

WorkSafe awarded the Institute Silver Status after consideration of the report and analysis of our injury 
performance statistics. 

Training for managers and supervisors is conducted biennially.  

Report of performance against the following targets:  
 

Measure Actual results Results against Target 

 2011 2013 Target Comment on Result 

Number of fatalities  0 0 Zero (0)   

Lost time injury/disease 
(LTI/D) incidence rate  (No of 
lost time injuries divided by 
FTE x 100) 

2.26 0.31 Zero (0) or 10% improvement 
on the previous three (3) years  

7 LTI in 2011. 
 
1 LTI in 2013 

Lost time injury severity rate  
(No of severe injuries [>60 
days lost] divided by No of 
LTI’s x 100) 

28.57 0 Zero (0) or 10% improvement 
on the previous three (3) years 

There were 2 injuries that 
required operations in 
2011 which resulted in the 
high rate 

Percentage of injured 
workers returned to work 
within 

(i) 13 weeks and  

(ii) 26 weeks  

 
 

 

71.43% 

100% 

 
 

 

100% 

100% 

Greater than or equal to 80% 
return  

See comments above 

Percentage of managers and 
supervisors trained in 
occupational safety, health 
and injury management 
responsibilities 

90% 85% Greater than or equal to 80% OSH training included in 
Induction for new 
employees. 
Manager & supervisors to 
undertake refresher 
training in 2014 

 
There were 7 minor injuries to staff in 2013 with no days lost and 2 injuries that resulted in Workers 
Compensation Claims, one with no time lost. 

Notified incidents were investigated and actions put in place to manage the injuries and also prevent similar 
incidents occurring. 

A system of ergonomic assessments is available to all staff to assist in the prevention of office overuse injuries. 

Equal Employment Opportunity, Equity, Access & Diversity. 
 
The Institute continues to address the Government’s priority to enhance diversity within the Public Sector. During 
the reporting period the Institute met its reporting obligations under equity based legislative and public sector 
management requirements. In accordance with Public Sector Commission requirements a Workforce 
Development Plan was developed which has integrated Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) management 
initiatives. Developing an understanding and appreciation of cultural diversity and ethics is achieved through staff 
induction and professional development training including cultural awareness training.  
 
A range of policies and documentation including  access to training and development guidelines, access and 
equity policy, grievance management processes, our Code of Conduct and performance management systems 
all have equity and diversity principles embedded in their scope.   
 
As part of the Institute’s EEO management, it has complied with the Department of Premier and Cabinet’s 
reporting requirements under Minimum Obligatory Information Requirements.  
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Substantive Equality  
 
In accordance with the Government’s Policy Framework for Substantive Equality the Institute has structures in 
place to monitor the impact of policies and processes that impact Aboriginal persons, people with disabilities and 
ethnic minorities. With an objective of substantive equality the Institute has committed and deployed significant 
human resources to give effect to substantive equality. This is undertaken through the roles of our Aboriginal 
Liaison Officer and Disability Services Officer.  
 

Disability Services 
 
West Coast Institute continues to strive improve access and inclusion for all students with a disability. West Coast 
is committed to promoting inclusive teaching practices to help overcome some of the difficulties experienced by 
students with a disability. 
 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) outcomes:  
 
People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of, and any 
events organised by, a public authority.  

 Increased access to Disability Support Officers across all campuses 
 Ongoing provision of accessible venues and interpreters at West Coast’s events 
 Continued use of DAAWS funding to support students in apprenticeship and traineeships 
 Ongoing provision of drop in tutorial assistance for students as needed 

 
People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the buildings and other 
facilities of a public authority.  

 Access audit using the Disability Services Commission’s (DSC) Accessibility Checklist conducted at 
McLarty Campus. Universal access works are in progress 

 Library refit included provision of group study areas and height adjustable desks to improve access 
 

People with disabilities receive information from a public authority in a format that will enable them to 
access the information as readily as other people are able to access it.  

 Audit of Institute website and redevelopment to meet Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 
level AA rating. The Institute’s website accessibility rating is now ranked as good 

 Ongoing provision of materials books/texts, lesson notes and course information in the format most 
suited to the students’ needs 

 Increased provision of materials in electronic format 
 Continued interpreting services provided for deaf students 

 
People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff of a public authority 
as other people receive from the staff of that public authority. 

 Information on the Institute’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan is included in staff online induction 
 Investigation into assistive technologies that enable more inclusive teaching practices 
 Disability support provide information and support to lecturing staff to assist them to understand 

Disability awareness and universal access   
 Lecturing staff have free access to disability staff to assist in developing more accessible teaching 

practices 
 
People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints to a public 
authority.  

 Complaints forms available in plain English and in alternate formats on request 
 Staff are available to assist students who wish to make a complaint 
 The right to complain is explained verbally to students on enrolment 
 Institute’s complaints process is published on our website 
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People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any public 
consultation by a public authority.  

 Students with disability are part of the Institute’s Disability Action Group 
 Students with disability are encouraged to provide feedback on the services provided by the Institute 
 Student with disability are encouraged to participate in any public consultation undertaken by the 

Institute 

Recordkeeping Plan 
 
The Institute operates within a sector-wide Recordkeeping Plan (RKP).  The reviewed plan was submitted and 
endorsed by the State Records Office in December 2012.  The sector also reviewed the Retention and Disposal 
Schedule, which was endorsed by the State Records Office in December 2013.   
 
Commencing in 2011, in late 2013 the Institute finalised a project to roll out TRIM Electronic Document 
Management System (EDMS) to all staff.  This project was established to implement a compliant records and 
documents management system.  Highlights of the project include: upgrading to the latest version of TRIM and 
purchase of new servers, negotiation and purchase of extra licences from DOE, creation of electronic student 
files and course files, training of staff in TRIM (critical mass reached), transitioning corporate service areas from 
using share drives to TRIM and positioning the academic areas so they will be able to move from using the Share 
Drive to using the intranet, TRIM and Blackboard to store documents. 
 
All staff were given face to face training in records awareness as part of this project. Staff have access to the 
RKP policies and help sheets through the Institute’s intranet.  These are reviewed and updated on a regular 
basis.  The online Records Awareness Training course has been incorporated into the online induction for new 
staff.  Regular TRIM training sessions are run throughout the year, which will reinforce the concepts of record 
keeping.  There are three training programs available, basic, and advanced and lecturer. 
 

Energy and Sustainability 
 
The Institute continues to operate in a manner that requires minimal energy usage and undertakes business 
activity in a sustainable manner. The highlights of the Institutes energy saving and sustainability actions in 2013 
are: 

 Energy savings of 346,745 kWhs in the period Jan-June 2013 and 482,509 kWhs from Jul-Dec 2013, 
representing a 30% and 39% reductions respectively in power usage/consumption for Joondalup 
campus against the 2007 base-year. 

 
 Commissioning of D Block PV Cells (29 Jan 2013) which has resulted in 43,166 kWh increase in solar 

production at Joondalup Campus this year. 
 

 Solar production for 2013 was a total of 140,042 kWhs, saving the institute approx. $39,000. 
 

 Upgrade to the A and C Block Chillers and Air Conditioning system (which included the removal of Gas 
Heating in A Block) allowed a more efficient production of chilled water with the potential to supply both 
A and C Block FCU's from only one chiller resulting in better energy efficiencies than from running two 
chillers on low demand days. 

 
 Gross 2013 GHG emissions of 2,299 tonnes CO2-e and net (after off-sets) of 2,261, compared to the 

2012 GHG emissions of 2,740 tonnes CO2-e and net 2,694 tonnes. The GHG base line was set in 2010 
at 2,484 tonnes CO2-e, net 2,460. This is a reduction of 7% from the baseline (185 tonnes C02-e). 
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Electoral Act 1907 Section 175ZE 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the following expenditures were 
incurred by, or on behalf of, the Institute as shown in the table below. 
 
Table: Expenditure for Advertising and Media Organisations 
 

Class of organisation Total Expenditure 
in 2013 

Organisation Amount  
ex GST 

Advertising agencies $  8,418 
$30,940 

Linc Integrated 
Aylka 

$  7,653 
$28,128 

Market Research Organisations Nil  Nil 
Polling Organisations Nil  Nil 
Direct Mail Organisations $    9,575 PMP Distribution $    8,705 
Media advertising agencies $194,299 

$  12,311 
$  11,220 

$     2,797 

Mitchell and Partners  
Adcorp Marketing  
Google 
Facebook 
 

$176,636 
$  11,192 
$  10,200 
$     2543 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr Russel Perry AM  Michelle Hoad  
Governing Council Chair  Managing Director 
10 March 2013   10 March 2013 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

“The facilities at Trades North are really good, 
and my lecturers were always supportive and 
really helpful.” 
 
Nicholas Coci 
Apprentice – Celebration Homes 
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Auditor General 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
  
To the Parliament of Western Australia  
  
WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING  
  
Report on the Financial Statements  
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the West Coast Institute of Training.  
  
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at  31 December 
2013, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
  
Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Governing 
Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
  
Auditor’s Responsibility  
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  
  
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Institute’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Governing 
Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
  
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion.  
  
Opinion  
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the West Coast Institute of Training at  31 
December 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They 
are in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions. 
Report on Controls  
I have audited the controls exercised by the West Coast Institute of Training during the year 
ended 31 December 2013.  
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Controls exercised by the West Coast Institute of Training are those policies and procedures 
established by the Governing Council to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment 
of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been 
in accordance with legislative provisions.  
  
Governing Council’s Responsibility for Controls  
The Governing Council is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control 
to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and 
disposal of public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with 
the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant 
written law.  
  
Auditor’s Responsibility  
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the controls exercised by the West Coast Institute of Training based on my audit conducted 
in accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.   
  
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
controls to ensure that the Institute complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and 
implementation of relevant controls.  
  
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion.  
  
Opinion  
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the West Coast Institute of Training are sufficiently 
adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of 
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in 
accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 31 December 2013.  
  
Report on the Key Performance Indicators  
I have audited the key performance indicators of the West Coast Institute of Training for the 
year ended 31 December 2013.   
  
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision.  
  
Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators  
The Governing Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Governing Council determines 
necessary to ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated 
performance.  
  
Auditor’s Responsibility  
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing and Assurance Standards.   
  
   
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In 
making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Governing Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in 
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order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for 
measuring the extent of outcome achievement and service provision.  
  
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion.  
  
Opinion  
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the West Coast Institute of Training are 
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Institute’s performance and fairly 
represent indicated performance for the year ended 31 December 2013.  
  
Independence  
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant 
ethical requirements.   
  
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators  
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
West Coast Institute of Training for the year ended 31 December 2013 included on the 
Institute’s website. The Institute’s management is responsible for the integrity of the 
Institute’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Institute’s 
website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance 
indicators described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which 
may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance 
indicators. If users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned 
with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the 
hard copy of the audited financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the 
information contained in this website version of the financial statements and key 
performance indicators.  
  
  
 

 
 
COLIN MURPHY  
AUDITOR GENERAL   
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA  
Perth, Western Australia  
12 March 2014  
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Section Four: Key Performance Indicators 
 

 
Certification of Key Performance Indicators  
 
We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate 
for assisting users to assess West Coast Institute’s performance, and fairly represent the performance of West 
Coast Institute for the financial year ended 31 December 2013. 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Dr Russel Perry AM Michelle Hoad  
Governing Council Chair Managing Director  

10 March 2014 10 March 2014  
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Key Performance Indicators  
 
Desired Outcome 
. 
The provision of vocational education and training services to meet community and industry training needs. 
 
The Effectiveness Indicators have been developed to assist in the Institute’s monitoring and management 
processes, and to enhance accountability to the people of Western Australia. 
 
The data is subject to audit under the Financial Management Act 2006. 

1. Effectiveness Indicators 
The effectiveness indicators measured in 2013 were: 
 

 Student satisfaction. 
 Achievement of Institute profile. 

 
Student Satisfaction Survey 
 
The 2013 Student Satisfaction Survey was conducted by Patterson Market Research on behalf of the 
Department of Training and Workforce Development (DTWD).  A summary of the results is available in the 
publication, 2013 Student Satisfaction Survey West Coast Institute of Training Report, January 2014. The 
survey measured student perception of the: 

 
 Quality of training. 
 Quality of assessment. 
 Student Experiences with training. 
 Student Experiences with quality of resources. 

 
A multiple data collection technique was employed, namely mail, online and Computer Assisted Telephone 
Interviewing. The process involved a two-stage mail-out, and a promotional campaign was undertaken to 
raise awareness of the survey, and encourage completion. 
 
The response rates achieved for West Coast Institute in 2013 are outlined in the table below.  The response 
rate is in line with other similar surveys (NCVER etc) to this target group (e.g students) and as such, is 
considered reliable. 
 
Table: Student Satisfaction Response Rates 2013 

 West Coast Institute 

Population (Usable Records) 3806 
Responses achieved 733 
% of students responding 19.3% 
Overall margin of error  1.1% 
Confidence Interval 95% 

 
1.1 Overall Student Satisfaction  

 
This information is available in the publication, 2013 Student Satisfaction Survey West Coast Institute of 
Training Report, January 2014. The key objective of the Institute is to improve student satisfaction with their 
course experience. The student satisfaction performance indicator compares the number of very satisfied 
respondents with those who are satisfied, which is expressed as a proportion of the total survey 
respondents. 

 
Table: Student Satisfaction Rate Trends 

 

 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 State 
2013 

Satisfied 47% 46% 48% 44.6% 44.4% 46.0% 

Very 
Satisfied 36% 43% 38% 41.6% 42.7% 39.9% 

Total 83% 89% 86% 86.2% 87.1% 85.9% 
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The Institute’s student satisfaction target was 85-90% and in 2013 this was achieved. While there was no 
tangible difference in regards to total satisfaction between 2012 and 2013 it was pleasing to note the shift 
from satisfied to very satisfied customers. 
 
Graduate Employment Status 
 
Given the Institute’s vision ‘To be the first choice of students and industry’ it is appropriate to use measures 
of employment status as an indicator of success. 
 
Table: Graduate Employment Status Response Rates 2013 
 

 West Coast Institute 

Population (Usable Records) 2321 
Responses achieved 779 
% of students responding 34% 
Overall margin of error  2.8% 
Confidence Interval 95% 

 
No targets for this indicator have been set as graduate destination is beyond the influence and control of the 
Institute. 
 
In 2012 the NCVER made improvements in the classification of graduates and module completes (see 'An 
analysis of self-reported graduates', http://www.ncver.edu.au/.   The 2011 data has been adjusted in the 
following tables, which means data presented in the Institute’s 2011 annual report will be different to the 
data shown here.  NCVER have not applied the new classification to the data from previous years for TAFE 
WA and TAFE Australia, the benchmarks used by the Institute in the effectiveness indicator reporting. 
 
Table: Graduate Employment Status Trends. 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Employed 75% NA 79% NA 82% 

Unemployed 13% NA 13% NA 10% 

Not in Labour 
Force 12% NA 8% NA 8% 

Note:  Statistically valid Institute level data was not available for 2008, 2010 and 2012.  The survey is 
conducted biennially.  Figures have been rounded up. 

 
1.2 Graduate Satisfaction 

 
Graduate satisfaction trends for West Coast Institute, WA and Australia. 
 
Table: Satisfied with the overall quality of training  

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

West Coast Institute 85% NA 90% NA 88% 

Western Australia 89% NA 90% NA 90% 

Australia 89% NA 90% NA 88% 

Note:  Statistically valid Institute level data was not available for 2008, 2010 and 2012. The survey is conducted 
biennially.  Figures have been rounded up. 

  

http://www.ncver.edu.au/wps/portal/vetdataportal/restricted/publicationContent/!ut/p/a1/lZDBbsIwEES_pQeOkdeOE8fHFNQ6iKoStCrxBTm2E4yCCcRF_fwa1Cul3dtIsztvB0m0RtKrs-tUcAev-ouW-abCZCoEhfmrEDlU7OltuRLvKeAcfSCJpPZhCFtUe322p824VSdrJjB8Nr3T10vjBEgG-OIdVGeNHV3nr0o7g2qeAm9ynSYEFyShRrGEY0aTFjeYt9YUyuiIUkcUuDEl_Ik0WqbPpaBsEXdoQaCaPYoZ4y8QzT-GXyLqyMBuhogMrf751Pwedfza7Y5HWcaWDz7Yr4DWd2se9vti1y7yZQFp1ncP34PzS5E!/dl5/d5/L2dBISEvZ0FBIS9nQSEh/
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Table: Fully or partly achieving their main reason for training  

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

West Coast Institute 
85% NA 84% 

NA 84% 

Western Australia 88% NA 88% NA 86% 

Australia 86% NA 86% NA 84% 

Note:  Statistically valid Institute level data was not available for 2008, 2010 and 2012. The survey is conducted 
biennially.  Figures have been rounded up. 
 
 
1.3 Annual Institute Profile Target Achievement 

 
The original 2013 Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) funded the Institute to deliver 2,203,250 
Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) distributed amongst the State-defined Industry Groups.  Following a 
number of addendums to the agreement the final contracted DPA was 2,403,250 SCH. 
 
This purchased delivery by the State from West Coast Institute took into consideration the needs of the 
state as defined in the State Training Profile and the needs of the key stakeholders of the Institute. The 
diversity of delivery indicates the extent to which the Institute is required to meet the strategic training needs 
of the local community, and the training plans of industry and individuals. 
 
Measure A:  Percentage of Achieved Delivery against Profile Delivery. 
 
This performance indicator shows the percentage of SCH achieved for profile funded VET delivery 
activities, original DPA target, as contracted with WA Department of Training and Workforce Development 
(DTWD) through the Delivery and Performance Agreement.  
 
The Institute’s 2013 profile delivery (2,340,953 SCH) was 1.7% higher than 2012 delivery (2,302,147). 
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Table: Profiled Student Curriculum Hours by Purchasing Matrix Classification 

Industry Group Description 2012 
DPA 

2012 
Actual 

2013 
DPA 

2013 
Actual 

01A  Recreation Sports & Entertainment 136,890 117,785 132,144 90,490 
01B  Visual and Performing Arts 0 22,605 85,802 34,705 
02A  Automotive 75,117 59,678 58,493 60,359 
03A  Building and Constructions 112,896 135,429 94,414 97,796 
04A  Community Service Workers 172,650 155,670 142,805 161,105 
04B  Education and Childcare 329,658 360,110 331,553 386,435 
04C  Health 230,670 257,341 284,335 287,685 
05A  Finance Insurance Property Service Workers 0 23,430 22,978 21,010 
06A  Food Trades and Processing 12,640 24,138 23,848 26,560 
09B  Metal and Mining 13,731 34,969 33,861 44,902 
10B  Forestry, Farming & Landcare 25,734 26,176 1,513 30,392 
10D  Horticulture 34,474 37,806 61,685 40,361 
12A  Personal Service 62,073 59,187 60,843 102,566 
12B  Retail 11,990 6,395 6,990 49,875 
13A  Cooking 87,332 67,654 72,643 75,951 
13B  Hospitality 114,991 142,976 176,111 125,467 
13C  Tourism 29,143 20,490 1,560 0 
13D Travel Agents 10,000 0 0 0 
15B  Electrical Trades 67,778 69,712 70,050 71,280 
16A  Accounting & Other Business Services 90,313 63,875 86,434 67,365 
16B  Management 146,905 105,455 79,835 111,360 
16C  Office and Clerical 93,401 88,836 29,639 73,449 
17A  Computing 177,086 157,705 91,751 204,125 
18A  Science and Technical Workers 114,698 127,580 108,698 22,280 
19B  Adult Literacy/ESL 97,310 103,615 103,530 124,545 
19E  Targeted Access & Participation Courses 57,560 33,530 42,185 30,890 
Total of Profile Achieved 2,305,040 2,302,147 2,203,250 2,340,953 
Percentage of Profile Achieved   99.87%   106.25% 

 
 
The Institute met its original DPA target of 2,203,250 SCH, achieving 106.25%.  It should be noted that during the 
course of the year, in March, June and October, West Coast Institute varied the delivery profile with DTWD to 
better reflect student demand and labour market conditions. Variations in 2013 actual SCH compared to the initial 
DPA occurred in a number of industry areas and reflected labour market conditions.  Accordingly, the variation 
depicted in the table above is based on forecasts made in December 2012 and not the final agreed DPA. 
 
Increases and decreases in actual SCH delivered represent unanticipated shifts in demand for training in various 
industry areas. These variations highlight the willingness and ability of the Institute to accommodate changes in 
client demand. 
 
The distribution of SCH is an effectiveness measure that indicates the extent to which the Institute is meeting its 
contractual obligations, as well as the training needs of the local community, individuals and industry. The 
Institute’s SCH delivery is translated through a range of courses that directly align with purchasing matrix cells 
that represent occupational classifications. 
 
The Industry Group Description is a classification of courses based on the occupation or outcome the course is 
intended to serve. 

 
In comparing 2013 delivery to 2012 the Institute’s Clarkson trades training facility has seen a significant growth in 
09B Metal and Mining, steady organic growth in 15B Electrical Trades and a decrease in 03A Building and 
Construction – reflecting softer industry demand in the residential construction sector. 
 
04B Education and Childcare and 04C Health saw a significant increase across these two industry groups, with 
steady growth spread amongst its course offerings. 
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In 2013 a stronger than expected demand for networking and digital media courses resulted in a significant 
increase in 17A Computing. This increase in demand was met by utilising SCH from other delivery areas such as 
01B Visual and Performing Arts and 18A Science and Technical Workers. 
 

Table: Trend data for SCH Achievement. 

 
Attainment of % SCH achieved has correlated to supply and demand issues within the labour market. 
 
Note: The SCH achievement % is based on the original DPA and not the final agreed figure   
 

2. Efficiency Indicators 
 
The efficiency indicator is a measure that shows the average cost of training delivery per student curriculum hour 
(SCH). 
 
2.1 Overall Cost per SCH 
  
The overall cost per SCH shows the aggregate unit cost of delivery output per SCH, based on the delivery costs 
(Total Cost of Services) as detailed in the 2013 Financial Statements. 
  
The cost per SCH for aggregate Institute delivery for 2013 was $14.18. The variation between the actual cost per 
SCH and Section 40 estimate targets can be largely explained by the difference in SCH delivered as opposed to 
forecast delivery. 

  
Table: Overall Cost per SCH. 

  2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Section 
40 Targets 

Total cost 
of services $31,489,223 $36,992,977 $42,084,450 $42,858,124 $40,916,890 $41,856,041 

Total SCH 
Delivered 2,724,437 2,770,353 3,055,780 3,250,955    2,885,196  3,111,485 

Total Cost 
per SCH 
delivered 

$11.56 $13.35 $13.77 $13.18   $14.18       $13.45 

  
The Total SCH delivered comprises of 544,243 SCH non –profile and 2,340,953 profile funded SCH 

The Total Cost per SCH delivered has seen significant variation from the original S40 forecast.  This difference 
can be largely attributed to a difference in the treatment and costing of Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) 
provision in the servicing of an international contract as opposed to RPL hours required by the State.  

There was a reduction in the number of, mainly non-lecturing, casual staff employed by the Institute, which 
reduced Employee Benefits Expense. This was also assisted by reduced employee leave liabilities due to leave 
management strategies. However, the reduction in Employee Benefits Expense was partially offset through the 
inclusion of termination payments made for the Voluntary Severance Scheme. 
  
Other expenses was also inflated by a one-off payment of $700,000 which was made to the Department of 
Training and Workforce Development in 2013 as a contribution towards maintenance costs (air-conditioning) to 
offset budget adjustments at other State Training Providers. If this figure was not included the total cost of 
services would have been $40,216,890 and subsequently the total cost per SCH delivered would have been 
stated as $13.94. 
 

  

DPA 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
% SCH Achieved 124.0% 101.8% 104.6% 99.87% 106.3% 
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Section Five: Financial Statements 
 

Certification of Financial Statements for the Year Ending 31 December 2013 
 
 

The accompanying financial statements of West Coast Institute have been prepared in compliance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 
transactions for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and the financial position as at 31 December 2013. 
 
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the 
financial statements misleading or inaccurate.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr Russel Perry AM Michelle Hoad Leighton Beeck 
Governing Council Chair Managing Director Chief Finance Officer 
10 March 2014 10 March 2014 10 March 2014 
 

  



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING  

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

 

 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

  2013 2012 

 Notes $ $ 
COST OF SERVICES 

 
   

Expenses    

Employee benefits expense 6 28,650,878 29,781,626 

Supplies and services 7 7,171,659 8,297,055 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 2,112,278 1,931,123 

Cost of sales 13 140,702 315,473 

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 17 895 - 

Other expenses 9 2,840,478 2,532,847 

Total cost of services  40,916,890 42,858,124 
    

Income    

Revenue    

Fee for service 10 4,606,566 4,107,603 

Student fees and charges 11 3,426,276 2,902,402 

Ancillary trading 12 524,407 515,713 

Sales 13 239,193 429,260 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 14 15,035 47,777 

Interest revenue 15 885,516 1,087,427 

Other revenue 16 216,010 349,721 

Total revenue  9,913,003 9,439,903 
    

Gains    

Gain on disposal of non-current assets 17 - 5,213 
    

Total gains  - 5,213 
    

Total income other than income from State Government 9,913,003 9,445,116 
    

NET COST OF SERVICES 31 31,003,887 33,413,008 
    

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT    

Service Appropriation 18 30,748,350 29,009,023 

Services received free of charge 18 835,035 675,976 

Total income from State Government  31,583,385 29,684,999 
    

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR PERIOD  579,498 (3,728,009) 

    

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 30 1,347,340 3,926,886 

Total other comprehensive income  1,347,340 3,926,886 
    

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE  PERIOD 1,926,838 198,877 



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 

   2013 2012 

 Notes $ $ 

ASSETS    

Current Assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 31 6,353,366 8,390,444 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,31 1,239,715 378,689 

Inventories 20 66,016 47,324 

Receivables 21 1,209,076 760,163 

Other financial assets 22,31 11,909,152 7,406,491 

Other current assets 22 240,520 224,192 

Total Current  Assets  21,017,845 17,207,303 

    

Non-Current Assets    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,31 - 737,977 

Property, plant and equipment 23 106,122,139 82,750,990 

Intangible assets 25 61,179 5,405 

Total Non-Current Assets  106,183,318 83,494,372 

    

TOTAL ASSETS  127,201,163 100,701,675 

LIABILITIES    

Current Liabilities    

Payables 27 2,289,549 1,304,508 

Provisions 28 4,034,522 4,471,132 

Other current liabilities 29 763,959 621,715 

Total Current Liabilities  7,088,030 6,397,355 

Non-Current Liabilities    

Provisions 28 1,809,167 1,751,192 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  1,809,167 1,751,192 

    

Total Liabilities  8,897,197 8,148,547 

    

NET ASSETS  118,303,966 92,553,128 

    

Equity    

Contributed equity 30 53,269,085 29,445,085 

Reserves 30 37,285,477 35,938,137 

Accumulated surplus 30 27,749,404 27,169,906 

    

TOTAL  EQUITY  118,303,966 92,553,128 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

  



 

 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING  

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

 

 

  

 

 

Contributed 

equity Reserves 

Accumulated 

surplus /  

(deficit) 

Total 

Equity 

 Note $ $ $ $ 

 30     

Balance at 1 January 2012  29,445,085 32,011,251 30,897,915 92,354,251 

      

Surplus/(deficit)   (3,728,009) (3,728,009) 

Other comprehensive income   3,926,886  3,926,886 

Total comprehensive income for the period  3,926,886 (3,728,009) 198,877 

      

Balance at 31 December 2012  29,445,085 35,938,137 27,169,906 92,553,128 

 

 
 

  
  

Balance at 1 January 2013  29,445,085 35,938,137 27,169,906 92,553,128 

      

Surplus/(deficit)   579,498 579,498 

Other comprehensive income   1,347,340  1,347,340 

Total comprehensive income for the period  1,347,340 579,498 1,926,838 

      

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners    

Capital appropriations  23,699,000   23,699,000 

Other contributions by owners  125,000   125,000 

Total  23,824,000   23,824,000 

      

Balance at 31 December 2013  53,269,085 37,285,477 27,749,404 118,303,966 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

  



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

 
  2013 2012 

 Notes $ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT    

Service Appropriation - Department of Training and Workforce Development 30,924,204 28,914,411 

Net cash provided by State Government  30,924,204 28,914,411 

    

Utilised as follows:    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Payments    

Employee benefits  (28,701,578) (29,222,464) 

Supplies and services  (5,789,159) (7,913,517) 

GST payments on purchases  (630,716) (969,592) 

Other payments  (3,001,340) (2,690,815) 

    

Receipts    

Fee for service  4,527,966 4,191,940 

Student fees and charges  3,280,133 2,880,295 

Ancillary trading  526,862 512,647 

Commonwealth grants and contributions  - 146,721 

Interest received  874,065 1,136,579 

GST receipts from sales  170,416 221,941 

GST receipts from taxation authority  455,522 817,679 

Other receipts  446,013 751,585 

Net cash (used in) operating activities 31 (27,841,816) (30,137,001) 

    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Purchase of non-current physical assets  (493,756) (1,598,540) 

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (493,756) (1,598,540) 

    

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  2,588,632 (2,821,130) 

    

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period  16,913,601 19,734,731 

    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 

PERIOD 
31 19,502,233 16,913,601 

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

  



 

 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

 

1. Australian Accounting Standards 

 

(a) General  

The Institute's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been prepared in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards.  The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards' refers to Standards and 

Interpretations made by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).  

 

The Institute has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their 
operative dates. 

 

(b) Early adoption of standards 

The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by 

Treasurer's Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'.  
There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended [but 

not operative] by the Institute for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 2013. 

 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Unless 

otherwise stated, these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

(a)  General Statement 

The financial statements constitute general purpose financial statements which has been prepared in 
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts 

and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions.  Several of 
these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. 

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the 
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, 
details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements. 

(b)  Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost 
convention, except for land and buildings which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied 
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($). 

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been 

made in the process of applying the Institute’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

  



 

 

 

 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

 

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future, and 

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of 
causing a material  adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.  

(c)  Reporting Entity 
The reporting entity comprises the Institute and there are no related or affiliated entities (see also note 38 

‘Related and Affiliated bodies’).  

(d) Contributed Equity 

AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers 
in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to 

be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions  by owners (at the time of, or prior to 
transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been 
designated as contributions by owners per TI 955 'Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector 

Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity. 

Transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative 

arrangements, are designated as contributions by/distributions to owners to where the transfers are non-
discretionary and non-reciprocal (see note 30 'Equity'). 

 

(e) Income 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. 

The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned from student fees and charges, 
fee for service, ancillary services, trading activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions. 

Sale of Goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and 

rewards of ownership control transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably.  

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions  

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the assets comprising the 

contributions, usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value.  

Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services 
would be purchased if not donated. 



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the Institute obtains 

control over the funds. The Institute obtains control of the funds at the time the funds are deposited into the 
Institute’s bank account 

Service appropriations 

Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Institute gains control 

of the appropriated funds.  The Institute gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are 
deposited into the bank account.  

State funds 

The funds received from the Department Training and Workforce Development in respect of the delivery of 
services forming part of the Delivery Performance Agreement are included in State funds, disclosed under 

‘Income from State Government’.  They are the result of training successfully tendered for under competitive 
tendering arrangements.  This revenue is recognised at nominal value in the period in which the Institute meets 

the terms of the Agreement.  See note 18 ‘Income from State Government’. 

Gains 

Realised or unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the disposal of 
non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 

 

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of 

utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives.  Where applicable in accordance with TI 1101, 
the capitalisation threshold has been applied to the aggregate value of a group or network of assets where the 

cost of individual item may be below the threshold but collectively the cost of the items in the group or 
network exceeds the threshold.  An example of this is the Institute Library Collection where individual items 

are below the capitalisation threshold but the collection has a long useful life and a material value.  Items of 
property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in 

total)  

Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.  For items of property, plant and equipment 
acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

  



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

Subsequent measurement  

Subsequent to initial recognition of an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and 
buildings and the cost model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair 

value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses.  All other items of 
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses. 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of 

current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are re-valued 
by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 

In the absence of market-based evidence, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of 
existing use.  This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value 

for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is 

determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the 
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. Fair value for 

restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate utility 
(high restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land less estimated rehabilitation costs 

(low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 

(Valuation Services) and recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ 
materially from the asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing 
use basis to assets and in determining estimated useful life.  Professional judgement by the valuer is required 

where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use assets. 
Refer to note 23 'Property, plant and equipment' for further information on revaluations. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating 
to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus.  

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current 

assets as described in note 23 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and note 24 ‘Fair value measurements’. 

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives 
in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.   

Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method over its 
useful life, using rates which are reviewed annually.   Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset 

are: 

 Buildings      5 to 40 years 

 Plant, furniture and general equipment  2 to 15 years 

 Computing, communications and software (a) 3 to 15 years 

 Leasehold improvements    5 years 

 Motor vehicle, caravans and trailers  6.67 years 
(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware 



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

Artworks and Library Collections 

Artworks 

The Institute’s artworks collection recorded on the Artworks Register is not classified as property, plant and 

equipment due to the value (currently at 1993 historical cost of $2,973) being immaterial to total property, 
plant and equipment, and a more current value not being reliably established.  Similarly, no depreciation of 

these is recognised as the useful lives of these items are anticipated to be very long / indefinite, and their 
service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period. 

Library Collection  
The Institute recognised the Library Collection as a grouped asset from 31 December 2006, requiring the first 
100% depreciation of the first year’s (2003) purchases as at 31 December 2009, and following years’ 

depreciation in subsequent reporting periods.  2010 was the first year where purchases were de-recognised in 
accordance with the ‘rolling depreciation’ methodology (see note 23).  Future years will be treated using the 

same methodology. 

(g) Intangible Assets 

Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets and internally generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or more are 

capitalised.  The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life.  Costs incurred below 
these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no 
cost or for nominal consideration, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit 
(estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis using rates which are reviewed 

annually.  All intangible assets controlled by the Institute have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The 
expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

 Software (a)  2 to 5 years 
(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 

Computer Software 

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment.  Software 

that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset.   Software costing less than 
$5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Web site costs 

Web site costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or 

development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised.   Generally, costs in relation to feasibility 
studies during the planning phase of a web site, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase 

are expensed.  Costs incurred in building or enhancing a web site, to the extent that they represent probable 
future economic benefits that can be reliably measured, are capitalised. 

 

 

 



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

 (h) Impairment of Assets 

Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of 
each reporting period.   Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.   Where an asset measured at 

cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a 
previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation 

decrement in other comprehensive income.  As the Institute is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been 
identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially 
understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. 

Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of assets' future economic benefits and to evaluate any 

impairment risk from falling replacement costs. 

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 

impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment. 

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the 

present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value 
have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence.  

Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of 
impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of 

impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

See note 26 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.  See note 2(n) 

‘Receivables’ and note 21 ‘Receivables’ for impairment of receivables. 

 

(i) Leases 

The Institute has no finance leases.  The Institute entered into operating lease arrangements for motor vehicles 
and accommodation. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this 

represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased vehicles and properties. 
  



 

 

WEST COAST INSTITUTE OF TRAINING   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

 (j) Financial Instruments 

In addition to cash and cash investment, the Institute has two categories of financial instrument: 

• Loans and receivables; and 

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

These have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial Assets 

• Cash and cash equivalents  

• Restricted cash 

• Receivables 

• Other financial assets (cash investment) 

Financial Liabilities 

• Payables 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the 
transaction cost or face value.  Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is 

no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not 
material. 

(k) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash and cash 

equivalents.  These are comprised of cash on hand and term deposits with original maturities of three to five 
months that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 

changes in value. 

(l) Accrued Salaries 

Accrued salaries (see note 27 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the 
financial year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the 
financial year.  Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end.  The Institute considers 

the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value.  The accrued salaries suspense 
account (see note 19 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense 

account over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the additional cash outlay in each eleventh year 
when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26.   No interest is received on this account. 

(m) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and the net realisable value.   Costs are assigned by the method 

most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being measured on an average cost 
basis. 

Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are 
measured at net realisable value. 

See note 20 ‘Inventories’. 
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

 (n) Receivables 

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible 
amounts (i.e. impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables 

identified as uncollectible are written off against the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectible 
amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Institute will not be able to collect 

the debts.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.  See note 
2(j) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 21 ‘Receivables’. 

(o) Payables 

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Institute becomes obliged to make future payments 
as a result of a purchase of assets or services.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are 

generally settled within 30 days.  See note 2(j) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 27 ‘Payables’. 

(p) Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal, 
equitable or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.  Provisions are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  See note 28 ‘Provisions’. 

(i)  Provisions - employee benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end 

of the reporting period. 

Annual Leave 

The liability for annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period is 
recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is 

settled. 

Annual leave not expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period is recognised and 

measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 

levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions as well as the 
experience of employee departures and periods of service.  The expected future payments are 

discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with 
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Institute does not have an 
unconditional right to the deferred settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

Long Service Leave 

A liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service 
based on remuneration rates current as at the end of the reporting period.  

An actuarial assessment of long service leave undertaken by Price Waterhouse Coopers Actuaries at 
31 December 2011 determined that the liability measured using the short hand measurement 

technique above was not materially different from the liability determined using the present value of 
expected future payments, and may be conducted for two out-years.  This calculation is consistent 

with the Institute's experience of employee retention and leave taken. 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Institute does not 
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of 

the reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as 
non-current liabilities because the Institute has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 

liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.  

Deferred leave 

The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an 
agreement to self-fund an additional twelve months leave in the fifth year of the agreement.  The 

provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year.  This 
liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave.  Deferred salary is reported as a current 

provision as employees can leave the scheme at their discretion at any time. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer public sector 
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. 

Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new 
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum 
scheme also closed to new members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the 
Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation 

Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of 
the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and 

new employees have been able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Institute 
makes contributions to GESB or other funds providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the 

Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions 
to these accumulation schemes extinguish the Institute’s liability for superannuation charges in respect 

of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.  

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole of government 

reporting.  However, it is a defined contribution plan for Institute purposes because the concurrent 
contributions (defined contributions) made by the Institute to GESB extinguishes the Institute’s 

obligations to the related superannuation liability. 

The Institute has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes.  The liabilities for the unfunded 

Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS Scheme transfer benefits attributable to members who 
transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations are 
funded by concurrent contributions made by the Institute to GESB.   
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Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued 

 

GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the 
Treasurer for the employer’s share.  See also note 2(q) ‘Superannuation expense’. 

(ii) Provisions -Other 

Employment On-Costs  

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are 
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has 

occurred.   Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part 
of the Institute’s ‘Employee benefits expense’.  The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs 
provision’ (see note 9 ‘Other expenses’ and note 28 ‘Provisions’). 

(q) Superannuation Expense  

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer contributions 

paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), and the GESB 
Super Scheme (GESBS) and other superannuation funds.  

(r) Services Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost 

Services received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income at 

fair value. Where the resource received represents a service that the authority would otherwise pay for, a 
corresponding expense is recognised.   

Services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income from State 
Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

(s) Comparative Figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the 

current financial year. 
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3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies 
 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of 
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  The 

Institute evaluates these judgements regularly. 
 

Operating lease commitments 

The Institute has entered into several commercial leases and has determined that the lessor retains 

substantially all the significant risks incidental to ownership of the property.  Accordingly, the leases have been 
classified as operating leases. 

Valuation of Land and Buildings 

Fair value has been determined on a current use valuation for land and depreciated replacement cost valuation 
for buildings.  The Institute has adopted these valuations rather than market values on the assumption that the 

land and buildings will continue to be used as a State Training Provider. 

Valuation of Clarkson Land  

As at the reporting date the land value for Clarkson campus has not been transferred as it is still held by the 
Department of Education as part of its value for Clarkson Senior High School, and no value has been 

incorporated for this property. 

Short Hand Valuation of Leave Liability 

In accordance with the actuarial assessment of leave liability undertaken by Price Waterhouse Coopers in 
2011, the determination of the December 2013 liability is measured using the short hand method, this being 

not materially different from the liability measured using the present value of expected future payments and 
that this estimation is in accordance with the requirements of AASB 119 Employee Benefits. 

 

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experiences and various other 
factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year.  

Valuation of Long Service Leave Liability 

Several estimations and assumptions in calculating the Institute’s long service leave provision include expected 

future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these 
estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 
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5. Disclosure of changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates 

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Institute has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2013 that impacted on the Institute: 

AASB 13 
Fair Value Measurement 

 

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires 

additional disclosures for fair value measurements for non-financial assets and liabilities. There is 

no financial impact. 

 

AASB 119 
Employee Benefits 

 

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to the recognition, 

presentation and disclosure requirements. 

 

The Institute assessed employee leave patterns to determine whether annual leave is a short-

term or other long-term employee benefit. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities 

that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material. 

 

AASB 2011-8 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-

11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 

139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132] 

 

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian 

Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. 

There is no financial impact. 

 

AASB 2011-9 

 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 

[AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 &1049] 

 

This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of 

whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification 

adjustments). There is no financial impact. 

 

AASB 2011-10 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 

101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14] 

 

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations 

as a result of issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave 

liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material. 

 

AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 

Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132] 

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information that will enable 

users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting 

arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets 

and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. There is no financial impact. 

 



 

 

 

 

Note 5 Disclosure of changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates continued 

Voluntary changes in Accounting Policy 

There are no voluntary changes in Accounting Policy for the year ending 31 December 2013. 

 

  

 AASB 2012-5 
 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 

1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2] 

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a 

consequence of the annual improvements process. There is no financial impact. 

 

AASB 2012-6 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition 

Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8] 

 

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January 

2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). Further amendments are also made to numerous consequential 

amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015. There is no financial 

impact. 

 

AASB 2012-9 
Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the Withdrawal of Australian Int 1039 

 

The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills in Australia has no financial 

impact for the Institute during the reporting period and at balance date. Measurement of tax assets 

and liabilities continues to be measured in accordance with enacted or substantively enacted tax 

law pursuant to AASB 112.46-47. 

 

AASB 2012-10 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 

5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 

1039, 1049 & 2011-7 and Int 12] 

 

The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and amends the mandatory application 

date of Standards for not-for-profit entities accounting for interests in other entities. There is no 

financial impact. 
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Note 5 Disclosure of changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates continued 

 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 

The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 

'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'.  Consequently, the Institute has 
not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact 

the Institute.  Where applicable, the Institute plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their 
application date: 

  Operative for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on 
/ after 

Int 21 Levies 

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy imposed 
should be recognised. There is no financial impact for the Institute at reporting date. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number 
of changes to accounting treatments. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2015.The Institute has not yet 

determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 

This Standard specifies the nature of budgetary disclosures, the circumstances in which they are to be 

included in the general purpose financial statements of not-for-profit entities within the General 
Government Sector. The Institute will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and 
explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2014 

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 
118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12] 

[modified by AASB 2010-7] 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 
101,102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137,139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 
127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and 

Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132] 

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some 
of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. 

The Institute does not routinely hold financial assets and financial liabilities that it intends to settle on a net 
basis, therefore there is no financial impact 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets. 

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no financial impact 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – 
Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049]. 

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance to clarify whether determine 

whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial returns aren’t a key attribute of the 
investor’s relationship. The Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact results from 
the adoption of the amended AASB 10 

1 Jan 2014 

 

Changes in accounting estimates 

No Changes have occurred in accounting policies or estimates for the year ended 31 December 2013. 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

6. Employee benefits expense   

Wages and salaries (a) 26,199,941  27,198,158  

Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 2,450,937  2,583,468  

Total 28,650,878  29,781,626 

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefit tax component, leave entitlements 

including superannuation contribution component.  

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State and Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contribution paid).  

Employment on-costs such as worker’s compensation insurance are included at note 9 “Other Expenses”. 

The employment on-costs liability is included at note 28 “Provisions”. 
   

7. Supplies and services   

Consumables  1,267,841  1,548,698  
Communication expenses  185,687  218,485  
Utilities expenses  825,474  793,756  
Consultancies and contracted services (a) 2,954,581 2,995,613  
Minor works and equipment  701,339  1,266,743  
Repairs and maintenance  27,087  27,386  
Operating lease and hire charges  275,381  360,082  
Travel and passenger transport   123,877  194,473  
Advertising and public relations 286,334  377,725  
Supplies and services - other 524,058  514,094  

Total  7,171,659 8,297,055 

(a)Audit Fees have been restated within Other Expenses in both 2012 and 2013 

See note 35 Explanatory Statement for commentary on decreases in 2013 for these expense items. 
   

8. Depreciation and amortisation expense   

Depreciation   

Buildings  1,414,310 1,215,237 

Leasehold improvements – buildings(a) 11,721 11,721 

Motor Vehicles 25,701 28,567 

Plant, furniture and general equipment 264,517 265,139 

Computers and communication network 318,301 333,208 

Library Collection (b) 62,882 58,073 

 2,097,432 1,911,945 

(a) Depreciation of work carried out on leased property at Pappas Street, Wangara. 

(b) Third year of rolling depreciation of the Institute Library Collection (See note 2 (f)). 

Amortisation   

Software 14,846 19,178 

 14,846 19,178 
   

Total 2,112,278 1,931,123 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

9. Other expenses   

Building Maintenance (a) 1,064,204 321,664 

Doubtful Debts Expense(b) 24,824 31,423 

Employment on-costs (c) 1,641,030 2,055,775 

Audit Fees(d) 94,000 88,000 

Student Prizes & Awards 13,249 16,381 

Losses and write-offs  3,171 233 

Other (e) - 19,371 

Total 2,840,478 2,532,847 

(a) A $700,000 payment was made to the Department of Training and Workforce Development in 2013 as a contribution 

towards air conditioning maintenance costs. 

(b) See note 21 for reconciliation of movement in doubtful debt expense 

(c) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated with the 

recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 28 'Provisions'. Superannuation contributions 

accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.  

(d) Audit Fees were previously within Supplies and Services. 

(e) 2012 included a refund of unspent monies on a Workplace English Language & Literacy (WELL) project ($15,387) and 

a provision set aside to provide training to the WA Police as part of the International Academy of Law Enforcement 

and Security (IALES) agreement ($3,984).  

   

10. Fee for service   

Fee for service - general 901,014  911,757  

Fee for service – Department of Training and Workforce Development -  14,757  

Fee for service – other Government 186,297  439,358  

Fee for service – other (International Students Study Tour) -  130,225  

Adult Community Education fees -  3,320  

International Division fees 3,519,255  2,608,186  

Total 4,606,566  4,107,603  

 

11. Student fees and charges   

Tuition fees 2,365,150  2,031,510  

Enrolment fees 9,100  8,925  

Resource fees 949,644  766,282  

Other Institute fees 102,382  95,685  

Total 3,426,276  2,902,402  

 See note 35 Explanatory Statement for commentary on increases in 2013 for student fees and charges 

   

12. Ancillary trading   

Live works (not a trading activity) (a) 514,906 499,238 

Other ancillary revenue  9,501 16,475 

Total 524,407 515,713 

(a) The outcome of training delivery can provide goods and services which, on occasions, are able to be passed on for 

recovery of some of the inputs of labour and materials in the delivery.   These ’live works’ are not a trading activity.   
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2013 2012 

 $ $ 

13. Trading Profit / (Loss)   

Bookshop   

Sales 239,193 326,839 

Cost of sales   

Opening inventory (47,324) (65,553) 

Purchases (159,394) (225,022) 

 (206,718) (290,575) 

Closing inventory (See also note 20) 66,016 47,324 

Cost of goods sold (140,702) (243,251) 

Trading Profit / (Loss) - Bookshop 98,491 83,588 

   

Diner (a)   

Sales - 102,421 

Cost of sales   

Opening inventory  - (4,938) 

Purchases - (67,284) 

 - (72,222) 

Closing inventory (See also note 20)  - 

Cost of goods sold - (72,222) 

Trading Profit  / (Loss) – Diner - 30,199 

Total 98,491 113,787 

(a)  The Diner ceased operations as an internal function on 5th June 2012   

 
14. Commonwealth grants and contributions 

  

Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions (a) 15,035 47,777 

 15,035 47,777 

 (a) Represents a payment from Austrade for the Export Market Development Grant ($15,035).    

 

15. Interest Revenue   

Interest Revenue (a) 885,516 1,087,427 

 885,516 1,087,427 

(a) Interest Revenue is earned on the Institute's operating bank account, term deposits and Investment at Treasury account. 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 
   

16. Other revenue   

Rental and facilities fees 97,894 91,232 

Sponsorship and donations revenue  36,551 50,480 

General revenue (a) 81,565 208,009 

Total 216,010 349,721 

 

(a) Includes the recoup of Clarkson works costs ($5,791) from the Department of Training and Workforce Development 

and  the recoup of McLarty facility costs from the Department of Education ($38,390). 

   

17. Net gain / (loss) on disposal of non-current assets   

Costs of disposal of Non-Current Assets   

Plant, furniture and general equipment (895) (483) 

Computers and communication network - (2) 

 (895) (485) 

Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets   

Plant, furniture and general equipment - 5,698 

 - 5,698 
   

Net gain / (loss) (895) 5,213 

See also note 23 Property, plant and equipment 

   

18. Income from State Government   

 

Appropriation received during the year 
 

Service Appropriation (a) (State Funds received from Department of Training and Workforce Development)  

 Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 30,087,020 28,858,510 

 Superannuation (Ordinary Time Earnings) 5,714 40,115 

 Other recurrent funds 119,516 92,670 

 Voluntary  severance scheme 536,100  

 Capital works transferred - 17,728 

Total Service Appropriation 30,748,350 29,009,023 

 

Services received free of charge (b) from other state government agencies during the financial period : 

Department of Training and Workforce Development   

 Corporate systems support 441,832 418,588 

 Human resources, industrial relations support 21,618 19,772 

 Other(c) 148,361 221,600 

 611,811 659,960 

 

Note 18 continued   
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(a) The West Coast Institute Scholarship Trust Fund was privately donated and is used for student scholarships. 

(b) Scholarship fund set up for revenue received from companies to comply with Commonwealth 457 Visa regulations. 

(c) The amount for 2012 and 2013 relates to funding received from the Department of Training and Workforce Development for 

works on the A Block Lift.  The lift is being installed in January 2014. 

(d) The 27th Pay allocation is a yearly provision and adjustment to cover the unfunded additional pay which occurs every 11 years, 

the next being in 2014.  The allocation is non-current except in the year preceding actual payment. 

 

  

 $ $ 

   

Department of Education(d) 206,927 - 

Department of Treasury (Building Management and Works) 13,112 9,703 

Other Government (State Solicitor’s Office) 3,185 6,313 

 223,224 16,016 

   

Total resources received free of charge 835,035 675,976 

   

Total income from State Government 31,583,385 29,684,999 

 

(a) Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the net cost of services delivered.   

(b)Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as revenues at fair value 

of the assets and/or services that can be reliably measured and which would have been purchased if they were not 

donated.  Contribution of assets or services in the nature of contributions by owners, are recognised direct to equity. 
(c) Services include student satisfaction survey, access to learning management systems, copyright and screenright licences and entry 

assessment services 
(d)HR and Finance services to the value of $206,927 were received from the Department of Education Shared Services 

Centre in addition to those paid for ($315,258). 

   

19. Restricted cash and cash equivalents   

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent cash resources the uses of which are restricted, wholly or 
partially, by regulations or other externally imposed requirements.  

Current   

West Coast Institute Scholarship Trust Fund (a) 14,068 15,651 

457 Visa Scholarship(b) 30,365 16,660 

Specific capital equipment and minor works (c) 302,122 346,378 

27th Pay allocation for 2014 (d) 893,160 - 

Total 1,239,715 378,689 

   

Non-Current   

27th Pay allocation for 2014 (d) - 737,977 

 - 737,977 

   

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,239,715 1,116,666 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

   

20. Inventories   

Inventories held for resale (a):   

 Bookshop (at cost) 66,016 47,324 

 Less: Provision for obsolete stock (b) - - 

Total 66,016 47,324 

(a) See also note 13 Trading Profit / (Loss). 

(b) No provision has been made for obsolete stock due to none being recognised in either stock for 2013 or 2012. 

   

21. Receivables   

Current   

Receivables – trade 474,612 261,606 

Receivables - students 77,748 60,862 

Accrued income (a) 576,590 425,716 

Allowance for impairment of receivables (53,376) (45,393) 

GST receivable 133,502 57,372 

Total 1,209,076 760,163 

(a) 2013 accrued income includes $260,402 for recoup of termination payments under the Voluntary Separation Scheme and 

$128,431 for ETI disbursements from the Department of Training and Workforce Development, $10,642 for completed 

WELL (Workplace English Language and Literacy) projects not yet invoiced, $15,035 for Commonwealth grant 

receivable for the Export Market Development Grant and $154,447 in accrued interest income on the Institute’s various 

operating and investment accounts. 

   

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:   

Balance at start of year (45,393) (47,892) 

Doubtful debts expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (24,824) (31,423) 

Amount written off during the year 20,137 35,360 

Amount recovered during the year (3,296) (1,438) 

Balance at end of year (53,376) (45,393) 

 

The Institute does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to receivables. 

See also note 2(n) Receivables and note 36 Financial Instruments. 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

22. Other assets   

Current   

Prepayments 240,520 224,192 

Cash investments (a) 11,909,152 7,406,491 

Total 12,149,672 7,630,683 

(a) Cash investments balance represents seven term deposits: 

- $2,074,506 with a 5 month term and a maturity date of 20 January 2014 held with Westpac. 

- $2,289,987 with a 5 month term and a maturity date of 12 February 2014 held with the Bank of Queensland. 

- $1,142,324 with a 4 month term and a maturity date of 2 March 2014 held with the Bank of Queensland. 

- $2,385,135 with a 5 month term and a maturity date of 7 March 2014 held with the Bank of Queensland 

- $2,045,123 with a 5 month term and a maturity date of 17 March 2014 held with the Bank of Queensland. 

- $1,452,191 with a 5 month term and a maturity date of 5 April 2014 held with the Bank of Queensland. 

- $519,886 with a 5 month term and a maturity date of 15 April 2014 held with Westpac. 

The increase is partly due to longer term investments and partly due to an increase in cash balances. 

 

23. Property, plant and equipment   

   

Land   

At fair value (a) (b) 35,030,000 29,500,000 

 35,030,000 29,500,000 

   

Buildings   

At fair value (a) (b)  69,029,000 50,263,000 

 69,029,000 50,263,000 
 

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2013 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation 

Services).  In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market values for land: $35,030,000 

(2012: $29,500,000) and buildings: $69,029,000 (2012: $50,263,000). For the remaining balance, fair value of buildings was 

determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of comparison 

with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land).  See note 2(f) Property, plant and equipment. 

(b) As at the reporting date the land value for Clarkson campus has not been transferred as it still held by the Department 

of Education as part of its value for Clarkson Senior High School. The increases are mainly due to the transfer of the 

McLarty campus from the Department of Education. 

(c) Reconciliation of carrying amounts includes Leasehold Improvements below  

   

Work in Progress   

Construction costs – building improvements 112,978 808,707 

 112,978 808,707 

   

Leasehold Improvements   

At cost 29,304 29,304 

Accumulated depreciation (23,443) (11,722) 

 5,861 17,582 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers   

At cost 184,277 184,277 

Accumulated depreciation  (130,650) (104,949) 

 53,627 79,328 

   

Plant, furniture and general equipment   

At cost 2,171,418 2,065,251 

Accumulated depreciation (1,037,717) (832,208) 

 1,133,701 1,233,043 

   

Computer equipment, communication network   

At cost 2,123,078 1,907,813 

Accumulated depreciation (1,707,220) (1,388,919) 

 415,858 518,894 

   

Institute Library Collection   

At cost   

Accumulated depreciation (a) 462,069 428,395 

 (120,955) (97,959) 

(a) See note 2(f) for information regarding recognition of the third year’s depreciation 

of the Institute Library Collection 341,114 330,436 

Total 106,122,139 82,750,990 
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Note 23 Property, Plant and Equipment continued 

 

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the 
reporting period are set out below: 

2013 Land Buildings 
Work in 

Progress 

Motor 

Vehicles 

Plant,  

furniture 

and 

general 

equipment 

Computer 

equip, 

comm. 

Network 

Library 

Collection 

Total 

Carrying amount at 

start of year 
29,500,000 50,280,582 808,707 79,328 1,233,043 518,894 330,436 82,750,990 

Additions 5,530,000 18,169,000 109,356  24,955 215,265 73,560 24,122,136 

Transfers   663,970 (805,085)  141,115   0 

Disposals     (59,903)  (39,886) (99,789) 

Revaluation Increments/ 

(decrements) 
 1,347,340      1,347,340 

Depreciation expense  (1,426,031)  (25,701) (264,517) (318,301) (62,882) (2,097,432) 

Depreciation write back 

on disposal 
    59,008  39,886 98,894 

Carrying amount at 

end of year 
35,030,000 69,034,861 112,978 53,627 1,133,701 415,858 341,114 106,122,139 

         

2012 Land Buildings 
Work in 

Progress 

Motor 

Vehicles 

Plant,  

furniture 

and 

general 

equipment 

Computer 

equip, 

comm. 

Network 

Library 

Collection 

Total 

Carrying amount at 

start of year 
29,500,000 47,215,134 278,465 94,895 1,050,550 670,016 323,235 79,132,295 

Additions  180,928 808,707 13,000 354,242 187,809 65,274 1,609,960 

Transfer  184,592 (278,465)  93,873   0 

Disposals     (84,917) (22,258) (34,543) (141,718) 

Revaluation Decrements  3,926,886      3,926,886 

Depreciation expense  (1,226,958)  (28,567) (265,139) (333,208) (58,073) (1,911,945) 

Depreciation write back 

on disposal 
    84,434 16,535 34,543 135,512 

Carrying amount at 

end of year 
29,500,000 50,280,582 808,707 79,328 1,233,043 518,894 330,436 82,750,990 
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24. Fair Value Measurements     
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value at 

end of 

period 

Assets measured at fair value: $ $ $ $ 

2013     

Land (Note 23) - - 35,030,000 35,030,000 

Buildings (Note 23) - - 69,034,861 69,034,861 

 - - 104,064,861 104,064,861 

     

 

 

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 

 Land Buildings 

 $ $ 

   

Fair value at start of period 29,500,000 50,280,582 

Additions 5,530,000 18,832,970 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - 1,347,340 

Depreciation Expense - (1,426,031) 

Fair Value at end of period 35,030,000 69,034,861 

 

Valuation processes 

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period. 

Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the 

transfer.  

Fair value for existing use specialised building is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic 

benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement 

cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed economic 

benefit, expired economic benefit or obsolescence of the asset. Determination of the current replacement cost of such assets 

held by the Institute is calculated by reference to gross project size specifications and the historical cost, adjusted by relevant 

indices. 

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable land that is 

unrestricted (low restricted use land), or, comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use 

land). 

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Institute are derived and evaluated as follows: 

Historical cost of building per square metre floor area (m2) 

The costs of construction of specialised buildings are extracted from financial records of the Institute, then indexed by 

movements in construction costs by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset 

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurements continued 
 
Sales prices of appropriate land of low utility 

These are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

Selection of land with similar approximate utility 

Fair value for land with low level utility (high restricted use) is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with 

similar approximate utility. Relevant comparators of land with similar approximate utility are selected by the Western Australian 

Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

 
Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements 

 

Description and fair 

value as at 31 

December 2013 

Valuation 

technique(s) 

Unobservable inputs Relationship of unobservable 

inputs to fair value 

 

    

Land       ($35,030,000) Market 

approach 

Selection of land with similar 

Approximate utility 

Higher value of similar land increases 

estimated fair value. 

 Buildings  ($69,034,861) Depreciated Consumed economic benefit/ 

obsolescence of asset 

Greater consumption of economic 

benefit or increased obsolescence 

lowers fair value. 
 

Replacement 

  Cost 

    

    Historical cost of building per 

square metre floor area (m2) 

Higher historical cost per m2 

increases fair value. 
    

    
 
Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 23.  

 

Basis of Valuation  
In the absence of market-based evidence due to the specialised nature of the assets, non-financial assets are valued at Level 3 of 

the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed 

on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are imposed by virtue 

of the assets being held to deliver a specific community service and the Institute's enabling legislation.   
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

25. Intangible assets   

Computer software   

At cost 205,580 134,960 

Accumulated amortisation (144,401) (129,555) 

Total 61,179 5,405 
   

Reconciliation   

Carrying amount at start of period 5,405 24,583 

Additions  70,620 - 

Amortisation Expense (14,846) (19,178) 

Carrying Amount at end of period 61,179 5,405 

   

26. Impairment of Assets   

There were no indications of impairment of property plant, equipment and intangibles as at 31 December 2013.   

The Institute held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period and at the end of 

the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use. 

All surplus assets as at 31 December 2013 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off. 
 
 

27. Payables   

Current   

Trade payables  8,654 - 

GST payable (a) 8,017 15,466 

Accrued expenses(b) 1,008,117 292,333 

Accrued salaries and related costs 1,262,895 993,068 

Parental leave payable 1,866 3,641 

Total 2,289,549 1,304,508 

(a) GST payable reflects both normal GST payments to ATO and recoverable amounts from customers. 

See also note 2 (o) 'Payables' and Note 36 'Financial Instruments'. 

(b) The increase over 2012 is principally due to minor works and the refurbishment of the McLarty campus that had been 

carried out but not paid for by the end of 2013.   
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

28. Provisions   

Current   

Employee benefits provision   

Annual leave (a) 951,153 1,140,359 

Long service leave (b) 2,415,026 2,614,112 

Superannuation 323,153 400,544 

Salary deferment(c) 124,732 69,809 

 3,814,064 4,224,824 

 

Other provisions 
Employment on-costs(d) 

 

 
220,458 

 
246,308 

 220,458 246,308 

Total Current 4,034,522 4,471,132 

   

Non-current   

Employee benefits provision   

Long service leave (b) 1,559,627 1,509,648 

Superannuation 149,724 144,926 

 1,709,351 1,654,574 

Other provisions   

Employment on-costs (d) 99,816 96,618 

 99,816 96,618 

   

Total Non-Current 1,809,167 1,751,192 

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 

months after the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows: 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 896,017 1,140,359 

More than 12 months of the end of the reporting period 146,447 109,475 

Total 1,042,464 1,249,834 

Due to Award changes, Annual Leave loading which has been accrued since April 2011 is paid in the year of accrual.  

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for 

at least 12 months after reporting date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows: 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 1,285,709 1,473,528 

More than 12 months of the end of the reporting period 3,070,511 3,046,114 

Total 4,356,220 4,519,641 

(c) Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months  after the end of the reporting period.  Actual settlement of the liabilities is expected 

to occur as follows: 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 53,129 - 

More than 12 months of the end of the reporting period 71,603 69,809 

Total 124,732 69,809 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

Note 28 Provisions continued 

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including 

payroll tax and workers compensation insurance.  The provision is the present value of expected future payments.  The 

associated expense is included at note 9 'Other expenses'. 

   
Movements in other provisions   

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below. 

Employment on-cost provision   

Carrying amount at start of period 342,926 341,970 

Additional provisions recognised 128,610 137,501 

Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits (151,262) (136,545) 

Carrying amount at end of period 320,274 342,926 

   

29. Other liabilities 

Current  
  

Income received in advance (a) 400,134 581,109 

Grants and advances (b) 363,230 15,987 

Money / deposits held in trust 358 24,382 

Other 237 237 

Total 763,959 621,715 
   

(a) Income received in advance comprises:   

Fee for service 50,012 119,087 

Student fees and charges 48,000 110,835 

Prepaid enrolments by Department of Corrective Services - 4,809 

Funding from DTWD for works on A Block Lift  302,122 346,378 

 400,134 581,109 

(b) Grants and advances include:  

Unearned revenue from Delivery and Performance Agreement (see note 18)  363,230 7,382 

457 Visa income in advance - 8,605 

 363,230 15,987 

   

30. Equity   

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Institute.  The Government holds the equity interest in the 

net assets of the Institute on behalf of the community.  The asset revaluation reserve represents the portion of equity 

resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets. 

 
Contributed equity 

  

Balance at start of period 29,445,085 29,445,085 

Contributions by owners   

Capital contribution (a) 23,699,000 - 

Royalties for Region fund  125,000 - 
 23,824,000  
   

Balance at end of period 53,269,085 29,445,085 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

Note 30 equity continued 

 

(a) Treasurer’s instruction TI 955 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities’ designates 

Capital Appropriations as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB. Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners 

Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’.  A Capital Contribution of $23,699,000 in 2013 was made for the transfer of 

the value of the McLarty campus from the Department of Education.  
 
 

Reserves   

Asset Revaluation Reserve   

Balance at start of period 35,938,137 32,011,251 

Net revaluation increments / (decrements):   

Buildings 1,347,340 3,926,886 

Balance at end of period 37,285,477 35,938,137 
   

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)   

Balance at start of period 27,169,906 30,897,915 

Result for the period 579,498 (3,728,009) 

Balance at end of period 27,749,404 27,169,906 

 

Total equity at end of period 118,303,966 92,553,128 
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 2013 2012 

31. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows $ $ 

Reconciliation of cash   

Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the 

Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 6,353,366 8,390,444 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,239,715 1,116,666 

Cash investments 11,909,152 7,406,491 

 19,502,233 16,913,601 

 
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by / (used in) operating activities 

Net Cost of Services (31,003,887) (33,413,008) 

Non-cash items:   

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,112,278 1,931,123 

Doubtful debts expense 7,983 (2,499) 

Services received free of charge 835,035 675,976 

Capital Works transferred from DTWD - 17,728 

Net (gain) / loss on sale of property, plant  and equipment   895 (5,213) 

   

(Increase) / decrease in assets:   

Current receivables  (199,897) 436,692 

Current inventories (18,692) 23,167 

Other current assets (16,328) 13,035 

 
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities 

  

Current payables (c) 993,557 (193,863) 

Income received in advance (169,348) (177,583) 

Current provisions (534,264) 650,726 

Non-current Provisions 155,630 (163,310) 

 
Other non-current liabilities 

  

Net GST receipts / (payments) (a) (460,300) (747,651) 

Change in GST in receivables / payables (b) 455,522 817,679 

   

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (27,841,816) (30,137,001) 

 
(a)  This is the net GST paid / received, i.e. cash transactions. 

(b)  This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables. 

(c)  Note that the ATO receivable /payable in respect in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in 

these items as they are not reconciling items.  
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

32. Commitments 
 

  

The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant 

Capital expenditure commitments   

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported 
in the financial statements, are payable as follows: 

Within 1 year 649,026 30,242 

Total 649,026 30,242 

The capital commitments include amounts for (a):   

Plant and equipment 129,098 7,394 

Buildings 519,928 22,848 

 649,026 30,242 

 

(a) Capital expenditure commitments for building improvements at the McLarty and Joondalup Campuses. 

   

Lease commitments   

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised in 
the financial statements, are payable as follows (a): 

Within 1 year 74,010 172,093 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 7,881 66,560 

Total 81,891 238,653 

Representing:   

Non-cancellable operating leases 81,891 238,653 

 81,891 238,653 

(a) The Institute has motor vehicle leases and property leases. 

 

Other expenditure commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as 

liabilities, are payable as follows: 

Within 1 year 406,695 638,530 

Total 406,695 638,530 
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 

   

33. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets   

No contingent liabilities or contingent assets exist as at 31 December 2013. 

   

34. Events occurring after the reporting period   

There are no significant events occurring after the reporting period that materially impact the financial statements 
as at 31 December 2013. 

   

35. Explanatory Statement   

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for expenses and income for 2013 and between the 

actual results for 2012 and 2013 are shown below.  Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 
$500,000 or exceeding 10% of the estimated or preceding year’s figure where it is considered of material value 

or additional disclosure supports reported results. 
 
 

Significant variations between estimated and actual results for 2013. 

 

 2013 2013  

 Estimate Actual Variation 

 $ $ $ 

Income    

Student fees and charges 2,876,837 3,426,276 549,439 

Sales 390,246 239,193 (151,053) 

Other revenue 276,924 216,010 (60,914) 

Services received free of charge 500,000 835,035 335,035 

Service appropriation 28,735,444 30,748,350 2,012,906 

    

Expense    

Employee expenses 30,077,729 28,650,878 (1,426,851) 
Cost of sales 217,609 140,702 (76,907) 

Other Expenses 2,031,246 2,840,478 809,232 

Students fees and charges 

Income from student fees (including resource fees) was originally estimated to fall slightly from 2012 levels.  

However, due to an increase in funding from the Department of Training and Workforce Development, the amount 

of student fees similarly increased, particularly in the areas of Education, Technology and Retail.   

Sales 

The level of trading activity within the bookshop decreased significantly in 2013, mainly due to the move towards 

on-line resources.  This drop in revenue is partially compensated for by a drop in the cost of bookshop sales.  

Other revenue 

The estimates included the revenue received from the agreement to deliver hospitality training services at Edith 

Cowan University.  However the course did not continue into 2013. 

Services Received Free of Charge 

An additional ‘charge’, which was not estimated, was received this year for HR and Finance services received free of 

charge from the Department of Education Shared Service Centre ($206,927).  This is in addition to the agreed 

payment of $315,258 to the Department which is paid in quarterly instalments.  This results in a total cost of 

$522,185. 
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Note 35. Explanatory Statement continued 

Service Appropriation 

The final DPA grant was $1.998 million higher than the initial estimate.  This was principally due to an additional 

200,000 Student Curriculum Hours being funded.  There is a potential refund of $363,230 payable to the 

Department for under delivery of the agreement in some areas (principally the relatively small shortfall of number of 

student curriculum hours delivered). The recoup from the Department of Training and Workforce Development of 

termination payments resulting from the Voluntary Separation Scheme ($536,100) was not included in the estimates  

– the costs are held within Employee Expenses 

 

Employee expenses 

Employee expenses were lower than estimated due to lower staffing levels than originally budgeted 

($1,064,252).  This was mainly due to the reduction in the number of, mainly non-lecturing, casual staff employed by 

the Institute. This was partially offset by the termination payments made ($536,100).  Employee leave liabilities have 

also reduced more than expected following rigorous monitoring of leave balances across the Institute ($657,419). 

Cost of Sales 

The level of trading activity within the bookshop decreased significantly in 2013, mainly due to the move towards 

on-line resources.  This drop in expenses directly relates to the drop in bookshop sales.  

Other Expenses 

A one-off payment of $700,000 was made to the Department of Training and Workforce Development in 2013 as a 

contribution towards air conditioning maintenance costs to offset budget adjustments at other State Training 

Providers. 

 

Significant Variances between actual results for 2013 and 2012 

 
 

2013 
 

2012 
 

 Actual Actual Variation 

 $ $ $ 

Income     

Fee for Service 4,606,566 4,107,604 498,962 

Student fees and charges 3,426,276 2,902,402 523,874 

Sales 239,193 429,260 (190,067) 

Interest revenue 885,516 1,087,427 (201,911) 

Other revenue 216,010 349,721 (133,711) 

Service appropriation 30,748,350 29,009,023 1,739,327 

Services received free of charge 835,035 675,976 159,059 

Expense    

Employee expenses 28,650,878 29,781,626 (1,130,748) 

Depreciation expense 2,112,278 1,931,123 181,155 

Supplies and services 7,171,659 8,297,055 (1,125,396) 

Cost of sales 140,702 315,473 (174,771) 

Other expenses 2,840,478 2,532,847 307,631 
 

Fee for Service 

The increase in Fee for Service Income is due to a substantial increase in international student fees ($911,085). 

This was due to an 11% increase in the 2013 overall international student numbers, generic increment in 

international student fees and a large Education and Training International disbursement of revenue which did not 

occur in 2012. 
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Note 35. Explanatory Statement continued 

Student fees and charges 

This positive variance is due to increased student numbers in a number of areas Retail, Education and Technology, 

as examples. 

Sales 

The level of bookshop trading activity has decreased significantly as a result of the move to on-line resources.  

There is a corresponding drop in the cost of sales. 

Interest revenue 

The decrease in revenues is due to lower interest rates being available on term deposits.  The drop has been 

mitigated to some extent by larger balances being available for investment due to the additional DPA grant and the 

lower than expected level of expenditure.  

Other revenue 

2012 included the recoup of the Business Growth Centre salaries from the Department of Training and 

Workforce Development.   The Business Growth Centre ceased operations in 2012.   2012 also included the 

revenue received from the agreement to deliver hospitality training services at Edith Cowan University, which has 

also now ceased.   

Service appropriation 

The DPA grant received in 2013 was $1,996 million higher than in 2012, after an adjustment for superannuation 

payments made in 2012.  The 2012 figure included an adjustment regarding an expected refund to the Department 

of Training and Workforce Development, which did not eventuate ($398,334).  A potential refund of 2013 DPA 

grant has been included ($363,230).  2013 also includes the recoup from Department of Training and Workforce 

Development of termination payments under the Voluntary Separation Scheme ($536,100). 

Services received free of charge 

An additional ‘charge’ was received in 2013 for HR and Finance services received free of charge from the 

Department of Education Shared Service Centre ($206,927) which was not oncosted in 2012.  This is in addition 

to the agreed payment to the Department ($315,258).  The Shared Service Centre cost a total of $522,185. 

Employee Expenses 

Employee expenses variances are due primarily to a reduction in the number of both contracted and casual staff 

and a focused reduction in leave liabilities.  The reduction in staff relates mainly to the Business Growth Centre 

and the International Academy of Law Enforcement and Security.  This was partially offset by inflationary increases, 

along with termination payments under the Voluntary Separation Scheme ($536,100).   

Depreciation 

The variance is due to the additional depreciation that is required to be recognised on the McLarty campus which 

was transferred in October 2013. 

Supplies and Services 

The Treasury directive to reduce purchasing in discretionary expenditure for a designated period resulted in 

savings of slightly under $500k.  There have also been delays in Minor Works projects. 2012 expenditure was 

higher than 2013 due to planned equipment purchases in that year from commercial surpluses.  

Cost of Sales 

The level of bookshop trading activity has decreased significantly as a result of the move to on-line resources.   

Other Expenses 

A one-off payment of $700,000 was made to the Department of Training and Workforce Development in 2013 as 

a contribution towards  air conditioning maintenance costs.   In 2012, a payment of $276,346 was made in relation 

to a Workers Compensation Insurance adjustment relating to 2008-09.  However in 2013, a credit adjustment of 

$74,870 was made in relation to 2009-10. 
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36. Financial Instruments 
 

  

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Financial instruments held by the Institute are cash and cash equivalents, cash investments, restricted cash and cash equivalents, 

receivables and payables.  The Institute has limited exposure to financial risks.  The Institute’s overall risk management program focus on 

managing the risks identified below: 

 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Institute’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial 

loss to the Institute.   

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the 

gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at Note 36(c) “Financial 

Instruments Disclosures’ and Note 21 ‘Receivables’. 

Credit risk associated with the Institute’s financial assets is minimal because the Institute trades only with recognised, creditworthy third 

parties.  The Institute has policies and procedures in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an 

appropriate credit history.  In addition, receivables balances are monitored regularly to ensure that the Institute’s debts are collected in a 

timely manner.  At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

 

Liquidity Risk 
The Institute is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.  Liquidity risk arises if the Institute is unable 

to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 

The Institute has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows 

to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 

 

Market Risk  

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Institute’s income or 

the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Institute does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other 

price risks (for example, equity securities or commodity prices changes).  Other than as detailed in the Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at 

Note 36(c), the Institute is not exposed to interest rate risk because the Institute has no borrowings. 

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments  

2013 

$ 

2012 

$ 
 

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as 

follows: 

 

Financial Assets   

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,353,366 8,390,444 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,239,715 1,116,666 

Receivables (a) 1,075,575 702,791 

Cash investments 11,909,152 7,406,491 

Financial Liabilities   

 Payables 2,281,532 1,289,042 

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO. 

(c) Financial instrument disclosure 
 

Credit risk  

The following table discloses the Institute’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets.  The Institute’s 

maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below.  The table 

discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets.  The table is based on information 

provided to senior management of the Institute. 

The Institute does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds. 

The Institute does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them 

being past due or impaired. 
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Note 36. Financial Instruments continued 

 

 
  Ageing analysis of financial assets 

 
  

 
              

 
  

        Past due but not impaired       
    

Carrying 
Amount 

Not past due 
and not 
impaired 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months 

3 months- 
1 year 1-5 Years 

More than 
5 years 

Impaired 
Financial 
Assets 

    $  $  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial Assets             

  

  

 2013             

  

  

Cash and cash equivalents(b)   18,262,518 18,262,518 - - - - - - 

Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 1,239,715 1,239,715 - - - - - - 

Receivables  (a)   1,075,575 945,253 94,133 22,704 54,355 11,177 1,329 (53,376) 

    20,577,808 20,447,486 94,133 22,704 54,355 11,177 1,329 (53,376) 

 2012                   

Cash and cash equivalents(b)   

                      

15,796,935 

                  

15,796,935                    -    

                 

-    

                 

-    

                     

-                 -    

                         

-    

Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 
                      

1,116,666    
                  

1,116,666    -                 -    
                 

-    
                 

-    
                     

-                 -    

Receivables  (a)   
                      

702,791    588,031    59,452    
                 

58,204   
                 

26,426    
                     

14,142    1,929    
                         

(45,393)    

    
                      

17,616,392   17,501,632    59,452    
                 

58,204    
                 

26,426   
                     

14,142    1,929    
                         

(45,393)    

 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable). 

(b) Includes the cash investment amount. 
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Note 36. Financial Instruments continued 

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure 

The following table details the Institute’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis for financial assets and 

financial liabilities.  The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section 

analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 

 

  Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 
            
   Interest rate exposure  Maturity dates    

Weighted  

Average  

Effective 

 Interest Rate 

Carrying 

Amount 

Fixed 

Interest 

Rate 

Variable 

Interest 

Rate 

Non-

Interest 

Bearing 

Nominal 

Amount 

Up to 1 

month 

1-3 months 3 months-1 

year 

1-5 

Years 

More 

than 5 

years 

 % $ $ $  $  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

 2013            

Financial Assets            

Cash and cash 

equivalent(b) 
3.68% 18,262,518 1,462,199 16,794,792 5,527 18,262,518 4,842,232 11,448,209 1,972,077 - - 

Restricted cash  and 

cash equivalent 
2.33% 1,239,715 1,195,282 44,433 - 1,239,715 1,225,647 14,068 - - - 

Receivables  (a)  1,075,575 - - 1,075,575 1,075,575 1,075,575 - - - - 

  20,577,808 2,657,481 16,839,225 1,081,102 20,577,808 7,143,454 11,462,277 1,972,077 - - 

Financial Liabilities            

Payables  2,281,532 - - 2,281,532 2,281,532 2,281,532 - - - - 

  2,281,532 - - 2,281,532 2,281,532 2,281,532 - - - - 

            

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
(b) Includes the cash investment amount. 

  

            

   Interest rate exposure  Maturity dates   

Weighted  

Average  

Effective  

Interest Rate 

Carrying 

Amount 

Fixed 

Interest 

Rate 

Variable 

Interest 

Rate 

 Non-

Interest 

Bearing  

 Nominal 

Amount  

Up to 1 

month 

1-3 months  3 months-

1 year  

1-5 

Years  

 More 

than 5 

years  

 % $ $ $  $  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

 2012             

Financial Assets            

Cash and cash 

equivalent(b) 

 

4.43% 

                      

15,796,935    

                  

1,984,724    

                

13,806,620    

                 

5,591    

                 

15,796,935    

                     

5,090,316    

             

7,298,881    

                     

3,407,738    

                   

-    

                     

-    

Restricted cash  and 

cash equivalent 

 

2.83% 

                      

1,116,666    

                  

1,084,355    

 

32,311          

                 -                    

1,116,666    

                     

1,084,355    

 

-    

                     

32,311    

                   

-    

                     

-    

Receivables  (a)                        

702,791    

                  

-    

                

 -    

                 

702,791    

 

702,791    

                     

702,791    

             

 -    

                     

-    

                   

-    

                     

-    

                        

17,616,392    

                  

3,069,079    

               

13,838,931    

                 

708,382    

 

17,616,392    

                     

6,877,462    

             

7,298,881    

                     

3,440,049    

                   

-    

                     

-    

            

Financial Liabilities                        

1,289,042    

                  

-    

            

     -    

                 

1,289,042    

 

1,289,042    

                     

1,289,042    

            

  -    

                     

-    

                   

-    

                     

-    

Payables                        

1,289,042    

                  

-    

               

  -    

                 

1,289,042    

 

1,289,042    

                     

1,289,042    

            

  -    

                     

-    

                   

-    

                     

-    

(a) The amount of payables excludes the GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable)    

(b) Includes the cash investments amount. 

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities 
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Note 36. Financial Instruments continued 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Institute’s financial assets and liabilities at the 

balance sheet date on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates.  It is assumed that the change in 

interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period. 
 

 

 

 - 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points 

 Carrying amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

2013 $ $ $ $ $ 

      

Financial Assets      

Cash Assets(a) 18,262,518 (182,625) (182,625) 182,625 182,625 

Restricted Cash and cash equivalent 1,239,715 (12,397) (12,397) 12,397 12,397 

 

 

 

 - 100 Basis Points 

 

+ 100 Basis Points 

 

 Carrying amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

2012 $ $ $ $ $ 

      

Financial Assets      

Cash Assets(a) 15,796,935 (157,913) (157,913) 157,913 157,913 

Restricted Cash and cash equivalent 1,116,666 (11,167) (11,167) 11,167 11,167 

(a) Includes the cash investment amount 

Fair Values 

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are 

recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair values unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes. 
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 2013 2012 

37. Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers 

Remuneration of members of the Accountable Authority   

The number of members of the accountable authority whose total fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits for the financial 

year, fall within the following bands are: 

$   

         $0 - $ 10,000 11 13 

    $80,001 - $ 90,000(a) - 1 

$150,001 - $160,000 - 1 

$260,001 - $270,000(b) 1 - 

       $      $ 

Base remuneration and superannuation 214,883 303,418 

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 64,492 (55,737) 

Other benefits 7,632 7,718 

The total remuneration of the members of the accountable authority: 287,007 255,399 

(a) Acting Managing Director pending the appointment process.  

(b) Leave paid out in 2012 to the retiring Managing Director totalled $62,557. 
The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of members of the Institute. 
No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.  

Remuneration of Senior Officers   

The number of Senior Officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose total fees, 

salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits receivable for the financial year, fall within the following bands 

are: 

$    

   $40,001 - $  50,000(a) 1 1 

$50,001 - $  60,000 - 1 

$60,001 - $70,000 1 - 

    $70,001 - $  80,000(b) 1 - 

$80,001 - $ 90,000 - - 

$100,001 - $110,000 - 2 

$120,001 - $130,000 - 1 

$130,001 - $140,000 1 - 

$140,001 - $150,000 - 4 

  $150,001 - $160,000(c) 3 - 

$160,001 - $170,000 - 1 

$170,001 - $180,000 1 - 

   $280,001 - $290,000(d) 1 - 

   

      $      $ 

Base remuneration and superannuation 1,336,871 1,233,671 

Annual leave and long service leave accruals (112,877) (62,618) 

Other benefits 18,249 10,880 

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 1,242,243 1,181,933 

(a) Relates to Chief Finance Officer leaving part way through the year  
(b) Relates to changes in senior officers part-way through 2013.  
(c) Includes $20,259 leave paid out.  
(d) Relates to the Voluntary Severance of the Director – Higher Education and Development 

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of senior officers other than senior 
officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority.   
No Senior Officers are members of the Pension Scheme.  
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 2013 2012 

 $ $ 
   

38. Remuneration of auditor   

Remuneration to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year 
is as follows: 

 
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators. 

97,800 94,000 

  

  

   
   

39. Related and Affiliated Bodies   

The Institute has no related or affiliated bodies as at the end of the reporting period.  

 
40. Supplementary Financial Information 

  

Write-Offs   

Public property written-off by the Governing Council during the financial year 9,488 23,950 

Bad debts 20,137 35,368 

Total 29,625 59,318 

   

Loses Through Theft, Defaults And Other Causes   

Losses of public and other moneys and public and other property through theft or default  9,520 24,032 

Amount recovered (261) (682) 

Total 9,259 23,350 

   

Gifts of Public Property   

No gifts of public property were provided to the Institute in the years to 31 December 2013 and 2012. 

 
 

  

41.  Schedule of Income and Expenditure by Service   

   

The Institute provides only one service, Vocational Education and Training Delivery, as defined by Treasurer’s 
Instruction 1101 (9).  
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Appendix 1  

Section 40 Estimates - 2014  

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

  2014 

for the 12 Months to 31 December 2014 $ 

      

COST OF SERVICES  

   

Expenses from ordinary activities  

Employee Expenses 29,187,912 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,450,630 

Supplies and services 7,658,141 

Cost of Sales 187,151 

Grants and subsidies 4,596 

Other expenses from ordinary activities 2.116,274 

Total Cost of Services 41,604,704 

   

Income  

Revenue  

Fee for service 4,145,254 

Student fees and charges 6,086,107 

Sales 231,264 

Ancillary trading 438,223 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 50,196 

Interest revenue 676,499 

Other revenue 207,775 

Total Revenue 11,835,318 

   

NET COST OF SERVICES (29,769,386) 

   

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT  

State funds  25,290,535 

Resources received free of charge 902,352 

Total revenues from State Government 26,192,887 

   

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (3,576,499) 

   

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

Changes in asset revaluation reserve 2,127,439 

Gains / (Losses) recognised directly in equity - 

  

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (1,449,060) 
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Section 40 Estimates – 2014  

Balance Sheet 

  2014 

as at 31 December 2014 $ 

   

Current Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 3,259,032 

Restricted and cash equivalents 45,224 

Inventories  90,000 

Receivables  660,238 

Other assets  9,637,252 

Total Current Assets 13,691,746 

   

Non-Current Assets  

Property, plant and equipment 114,330,056 

Intangible assets 245,000 

Total Non-Current Assets 114,575,056 

   

Total Assets 128,266,802 

   

Current Liabilities  

Payables  354,130 

Provisions  4,033,452 

Other liabilities 410,000 

Total Current Liabilities 4,797,582 

   

Non-Current Liabilities  

Provisions  1,803,812 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,803,812 

   

Total Liabilities 6,601,394 

   

NET ASSETS 121,665,408 

   

Equity   

Contributed Equity 58,283,685 

Asset revaluation reserve 39,486,066 

Accumulated surplus 23,895,657 

   

TOTAL EQUITY 121,665,408 
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Section 40 Estimates - 2014  

Changes in Equity Statement 

  2014 

As at 31 December 2014 $ 

      

Balance of equity at start of financial year 119,114,468 

  

Contributed equity  

Balance at start of financial year 54,283,685 

Capital Contribution 4,000,000 

Balance at end of financial year 58,283,685 

 

Reserves  

Asset revaluation reserve  

Balance at start of financial year 37,358,627 

Gains / (losses) from asset revaluation 2,127,439 

Balance at end of financial year 39,486,066 

  

Accumulated surplus (retained earnings)  

Balance at start of financial year 27,472,156 

Surplus for the financial year (3,576,499) 

Balance at end of financial year 23,895,657 

  

Balance of equity at end of financial year 121,665,408 
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Section 40 Estimates – 2014  

Cash Flow Statement 

  2014 

for the 12 Months to 31 December 2014 $ 

    

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT  

 State funds Recurrent  25,160,694 

Net cash provided by State Government  25,160,694 

   

Utilised as follows:  

   

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

 Payments  

 Employee benefits (30,211,540) 

 Supplies and services (6,555,789) 

 Grants and subsidies (4,596) 

 GST payments on purchases (800,000) 

 Other payments (2,303,557) 

   

 Receipts  

 Fee for service 4,145,254 

 Student fees and charges 6,058,363 

 Ancillary trading 438,223 

 Commonwealth grants and contributions 50,196 

 Interest received 671,023 

 GST receipts on sales 170,000 

 GST receipts from taxation authority 630,000 

 Other receipts 439,039 

   

Net cash used in operating activities (27,273,384) 

   

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

 Purchase of non-current physical assets (3,473,000) 

   

Net cash used in investing activities (3,473,000) 

   

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (5,585,690) 

   

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 18,356,242 

   

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 12,770,552 
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